
Plonning Commission
Dove McCullough, District I

Heoth Krug, District 2
John Troughton, Jr., Diskict 3, Choir
Kirk Pendleton, District 4
Elizobeih Yexo, Dislricl 5,
Vice-Choir

Community Developmenl Deporlmenl
Greg Plucker,

Secreiory to the Plonning Commission
220 l2th Street, Coluso, CA 95932

Phone: (530)458-0480
Fox: (530)458-0482

colusocountyco.iqm2.com
www.counlyotcoluso.org

COTUSA COUNTY
Plonning Commission

Minutes
Moy 3,2023

The Coluso County Plonning Commission meets in Regulor Session this 3d doy of Moy
2023 ol the hour of 9:00 o.m. Present: Commissioners Heoth Krug, Klrk Pendleton, Dove
McCullough, Elizobeth Yerxo ond John Troughton, Jr.

Pledge of Allegionce

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
l. Minutes Approvol
Plonning Commission - Regulor Meelings - April 5,2023.

II. PUBLIC COMMENT
None

III. PUBLIC HEARING
Choir Troughton mokes time to close the Public Heoring ond indefinitely toble

the Jonus Solor PV, LLC project.

Commenls received by Mr. Plucker ond Ms. Sulton.

?:06 o.m. Commissionen Yeao ond McCullough recuse themselves ond leove the
room.

RESULT:

MOVER:
SECONDER:
AYES:

APPROVED IUNANIMOUSI
Yerxo
McCullough
Krug, Yerxo, McCullou h, Trou hton, Jr., Pendleton

Plonninq Commission Minutes Book 2023 t0

9:07 o.m. ChoirTroughlon opens lhe Public Heoring ond colls for public commenl

Boord Chombers
546 Joy Skeel, Suile 108

Coluso, CA 95932

t.

Attachment #9



Regulor Meeiings Moy 3.2023 9:00 o.m.

Chief Gilbert slotes they've hod discussions wilh Jonus ond hove looked into
severol mitigotion meosures regording the risk reloted to the lithium ion botteries. He

stotes there hove been incidents of similor projects ond their biggest concern is public
sofety.

Mr. Fenini requests clorificotion os to whether negotiotions ore between the
County ond Jonus or between lhe Willioms Fire Authority ond Jonus.

Mr. Plucker stotes thot the Fire Authorily discussion is on importont foclor lo
consider ond the County is helping focilitote the process. Mr. Plucker furlher slotes thot
if the item is brought bock before the Commission, the public will be notified with
sufficient notice for comments ond future meetings.

Ms. Terkildsen stotes thot the fire issue is very importont, but the comments
presented ore olso importont ond should be token inlo considerotion.

,:12 o.m. Choir Troughton colls for ony further public comment. Heoring none, Choir
Troughton closes the Public Heoring.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT /JANUS SOLAR PV, LLC

lndefinitely toble the Jonus Solor PV, LLC project

RESU I.T: TABTED INDETINITEIY

PLANNING DIRECTOR COMMENIS/REPORTS
Mr. Plucker stoles he will continue providing updotes to the Commission

regording the Jonus Solor Project os they orise.

V. PLAN N ER' COMMENTS REPORTS

None.

PI nrng Commission

ohnT ug o r.. Choi Melisso Kilts, Depuly Clerk

ll

,:13 o.m. Commissioners McCullough ond Yexo rejoin the Session ond ore now seoted.

ChoirTroughlon, Jr. odjourned the meeting of 9:14 o.m. to reconvene in Regulor
Session on June 7 ,2023 ot the hour of 9:00 o.m.

Respectf ully submitled,
Greg Plucker, Secretory to the

Plonning Commission Minutes Book 2023

Attachment #9



 Planning Commission Meeting: 05/03/23 09:00 AM 
 546 Jay Street, Suite 108 Department: Community Development 

Colusa, CA  95932 Category: Public Hearing
  Prepared By: Greg Plucker 

 SCHEDULED Initiator: Greg Plucker 
 Sponsors:  

 PLANNING COMMISSION (ID # 9066) DOC ID: 9066  

Updated: 4/25/2023 12:05 PM by Greg Plucker  Page 1 

 
Detail    
Applicant:  Janus Solar PV, LLC File:  Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829) 
General Plan:  Agriculture General (AG), 

Agriculture Upland (AU) 
Zoning:  Foothill Agriculture (F-A), 

Exclusive Agriculture (E-A) 
 

Formal Title / Summary 
Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829) 

 
 

Action Requested 
Close the Public Hearing and indefinitely table the project. 
 
 
DETAILED DESCRIPTION/BACKGROUND OF REQUEST 
 
Janus Solar PV, LLC (Applicant) has applied for a conditional use permit to construct, 
operate, maintain, and decommission (in the future) a photovoltaic (PV) electricity 
generating facility with a battery energy storage system (BESS) and associated facilities 
and infrastructure. The project would generate and store up to 80 megawatts of 
electricity on an approximately 768 acres of a 1,024-acre site.  The proposed battery 
energy storage system (BESS) would extend the period of time each day that the 
project could contribute the PV-generated energy to the electrical grid.  The project 
would connect to the existing Cortina Substation, which is owned and operated by 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 4 miles northeast of the 
project site by aboveground electrical lines.  Contingent upon project approval, the 
Board of Supervisors would consider the ca
Williamson Act contract. 
 

 
 
018-050-005-000, 018-050-006-000, and 018-050-013-000 
 
LOCATION: 
 
The project site is located approximately 6.5 west/southwest from the City of Williams.  
Access to the site is provided by Spring Valley Road and is approximately 1.64 miles to 
the south of the Spring Valley Road/Walnut Drive street intersection.  Please refer to 
Figure 2-1 (Project Location) of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the 
specific location. 
 
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (FEIR): 

3.1

Packet Pg. 7

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9066)  Meeting of May 3, 2023 

Updated: 4/25/2023 12:05 PM by Greg Plucker  Page 2 

 
As detailed in previous staff report, the County of Colusa (County), as the CEQA Lead 
Agency, has prepared an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 
2020070577) to document the analysis of the potential direct, indirect, and cumulative 
impacts of the proposed project. 
 
The Public Hearing on the Final EIR and the Use Permit for the Janus solar project was 

the Planning Commission agenda packet from the April meeting with attachments.  
Included in this packet was a series of letters identifying a number of issues and 

and 177 of the pdf staff report) which is a letter from the Williams Fire Authority, dated 

t 
a fire caused by the battery energy storage system (BESS).   
 

 
 

members are funded by a grant this is scheduled to expire in 2024.  Without these 4 
grant funded positions, the Authority will revert to single-person staffed engines.  During 
calls for service, the engine would not be able to respond until volunteers arrive.  The 
Chief is concerned that there is no guarantee that volunteers would respond to a fire at 
the BESS facility and that they would not have adequate training. 
  
Prior to and after the April 4, 2023 public hearing, County staff, Janus representatives, 
and Fire Authority staff and Board members have discussed the design characteristics 
of the proposed BESS facility, the operational capacity of the Fire Authority, and the 

Gilbert has also discussed emergency response issues and specialized training 
requirements with fire chiefs that have experienced fires at other battery storage 
facilities.  Chief Gilbert and the Williams Fire Authority Board of Director believe that in 
order to be able to respond to a fire at the proposed BESS facility, that it is critical that 
full-time, permanent firefighting staff be available due to the challenges of fighting a 
fire at a BESS facility.  Chief Gilbert has calculated that the total staffing and support 
cost to staff a 24-hour a day, 7-days a week, and 365-days a year firefighter position is 
$300,000.  The Chief believes that without the funding to hire permanent full-time staff, 
no assurance can be given that the volunteer firefighting staff that may respond to an 
incident at the BESS facility will have received the specialized training needed to fight a 
fire at the BESS facility. 
 
The project applicant is currently unable to commit to this level of funding for fire 

3.1

Packet Pg. 8

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9066)  Meeting of May 3, 2023 

Updated: 4/25/2023 12:05 PM by Greg Plucker  Page 3 

protection services.  The applicant is currently working with their fire protection 
consultants to evaluate the technology that were used in the battery storage fires that 
have occurred in comparison to the technology that will be employed in this project.  
Staff believe that this is a critical issue and that this information is necessary for the 
Planning Commission to make an informed decision.  As such, staff is recommending 
that the item be tabled until this additional information is available and can be 
considered by the Commission. 
 
Other Comment Letters 
 
Included in the attached April 4, 2023 Planning Commission staff report other comment 
letters expressing strong concern and opposition with the project have been submitted.  
Staff will be fully reviewing these issues during the time that the application is tabled. 
 
The Commission may also recall, at the April 4, 2023 Planning Commission meeting 
Charlie Wright, Chairperson of the Kletsel Dehe Wintun Nation of the Cortina Rancheria, 
spoke regarding concern with the potential impacts to unknown cultural resources.  
Subsequently, County staff discussed the issue with Chair Wright.  Chair Wright provided 
the Patwin Cultural Protection and Preservation Plan (attached) which can be used as 
guidance in future projects.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
Given the unresolved fire operational issues, staff does not believe that the project can 
be fully reviewed, nor can all of the issues be fully considered.  As such, staff believes 
that the project should be tabled until a full review of this issue has been developed. 

3.1

Packet Pg. 9

Attachment #9



3.1.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 W
il

li
a

m
s 

F
ir

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 O

p
er

a
ti

o
n

al
 Is

su
es

 L
et

te
r 

(A
tt

ac
. #

2
 f

ro
m

 4
/5

/2
3

 P
C

 R
ep

o
rt

) 
 (

9
0

6
6 

: 
Ja

n
u

s
 S

o
la

r 
U

s
e 

P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0
-0

1 
(P

D
-

Attachment #9



3.1.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 W
il

li
a

m
s 

F
ir

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 O

p
er

a
ti

o
n

al
 Is

su
es

 L
et

te
r 

(A
tt

ac
. #

2
 f

ro
m

 4
/5

/2
3

 P
C

 R
ep

o
rt

) 
 (

9
0

6
6 

: 
Ja

n
u

s
 S

o
la

r 
U

s
e 

P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0
-0

1 
(P

D
-

Attachment #9



Planning Commission Meeting: 04/05/23 09:00 AM
546 Jay Street, Suite 108 Department: Community Development 

Colusa, CA  95932 Category: Public Hearing 
Prepared By: Melissa Kitts 

SCHEDULED Initiator: Greg Plucker
Sponsors:  

PLANNING COMMISSION (ID # 9002) DOC ID: 9002

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 1 

File:  Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829) 
Detail 
Applicant:  Janus Solar PV, LLC 
General Plan:  Agriculture Upland (AU) Zoning:  Foothill Agriculture (F-A)

 

Formal Title / Summary 

Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829) 

Action Requested 
Open and continue the Public Hearing on the Final Environmental Impact Report and 
Use Permit for the Janus Solar Project to 9:00 a.m., May 6, 2023, Planning Commission 
meeting. 

DETAILED DESCRIPTION/BACKGROUND OF REQUEST 

Additional public comment letters have been received and are attached to this report 
for review prior to the May 6, 2023 meeting. Janus Solar PV, LLC (Applicant) has applied 
for a conditional use permit to construct, operate, maintain, and decommission (in the 
future) a photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility with a battery energy storage 
system (BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure  The project would generate 
and store up to 80 megawatts of electricity on an approximately 768 acres of a 1,024-
acre site.  The proposed battery energy storage system (BESS) would extend the period 
of time each day that the project could contribute the PV-generated energy to the 
electrical grid.  The project would connect to the existing Cortina Substation, which is 
owned and operated by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 4 
miles northeast of the project site by aboveground electrical lines   Contingent upon 
project approval, the Board of Supervisors would consider the cancellation of the 
property’s existing Williamson Act contract. 

The County of Colusa (County), as the CEQA Lead Agency, has prepared an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577) to document 
the analysis of the potential direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts of the proposed 
project

APN: 

018-050-005-000, 018-050-006-000, and 018-050-013-000

LOCATION: 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 2 

The project site is located approximately 6.5 west/southwest from the City of Williams.  
Access to the site is provided by Spring Valley Road and is approximately 1.64 miles to 
the south of the Spring Valley Road/Walnut Drive street intersection.  Please refer to 
Figure 2-1 (Project Location) of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the 
specific location. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
 
Overview 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), when a discretionary 
project (such as the subject Use Permit) is submitted to the County for approval, the 
County acting as the Lead Agency must determine: 

(1) Whether the project is covered by either Statutory or Categorical Exemption; 

(2) If not exempt, if there is no possibility that the project would have the potential to 
cause a significant impact, or if potential significant impacts are mitigated below 
the level of significance then a Mitigated Negative Declaration can be 
prepared; or 

(3) If there is reasonable information that the project may have a significant impact 
on the environment despite any potential mitigation measures, then an 
Environmental Impact report must be prepared. 

When staff originally reviewed the proposed application, staff determined that given 
the size and scope of the project that it was reasonable to determine that the project 
could have potential significant effects upon the environment.  As such, the 
Community Development Department, as the CEQA Lead Agency  prepared an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577) to document 
the analysis of the potential direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts of the proposed 
project

An EIR is primarily an informational document intended to inform the public agency 
decision-makers (in case of a Use Permit the Planning Commission), other responsible 
agencies, and the general public of the potentially significant effects of a proposed 
project.  The EIR discloses all known potentially significant impacts; identifies feasible 
means to minimize or mitigate those effects; and considers reasonable alternatives to 
the project that might further reduce significant impacts while still attaining the project 
objectives. The decision-making body then must consider the information in an EIR 
before taking action on the proposed project.  

An EIR is prepared in two key stages. First, a Draft EIR (DEIR) is prepared and distributed 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 3 

for public and agency review. Once comments on the DEIR are received, responses to 
those comments and any additional relevant project information are prepared and 
compiled in a Final EIR (FEIR). Both of these documents (i.e., the DEIR and the FEIR), 
along with any related technical appendices, represent the complete record of the 
EIR. 

Throughout this staff report, the term EIR may be used to refer to the DEIR together with 
the Final EIR, Appendices, and all other studies and documents prepared as part of the 
environmental review process since these documents represent the totality of the EIR 
record,  However, when referring to just the “Draft EIR” document  the term DEIR will be 
used and when referring to just the “Final EIR” document  the term FEIR will be used.   

Ultimately, the EIR is used by the agency’s decision making body to weigh the 
environmental impacts against a proposed project in order to make an informed 
decision.  In the case of the Janus Solar Use Permit, the Planning Commission is the 
decision making body for the Use Permit and the Board of Supervisors is the decision 
making body for the proposed Williamson Act contract cancellation.

Process 

In preparing the EIR, the following is a general overview of the process that has been 
undertaken: 

July  2020 the required Tribal Cultural Resources Notification of Consultation 
Opportunity pursuant to Public Resources Code § 21080.3.1 was sent. 

July, 2020  the Notice of Preparation of the DEIR was sent to the State Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR) for distribution to State agencies. 

October, 2021, the Notice of Availability along with the Notice of Completion for 
the Janus Solar DEIR was sent to the State’s OPR which informed State 
responsible agencies of the availability of the DEIR for review and started the 45-
day period for the DEIR

October, 2021, the Notice of Completion for the Janus Solar DEIR was also sent to 
adjacent property owners, local agencies and published in the Williams Pioneer 
newspaper.  In addition, this notice informed the public of a neighborhood 
meeting which was held in November, 2021 in order to provide an opportunity to 
learn about the project and provide initial comments. 

February, 2023, the Final Environmental Impact Report was published.  
Responsible agencies, surrounding property owners, and all individual and 
agencies that commented on the DEIR were notified of its completion and of the 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 4 

public hearing for consideration of the FEIR and Use Permit at the Planning 
Commission’s March 1, 2023 meeting. 

February 9, 2023, the public hearing notice informing the public about the 
Planning Commission’s consideration of the FEIR and Use Permit at its March 1, 
2023 meeting was posted in the Williams Pioneer newspaper.  

The EIR is now before the Planning Commission for your review and consideration as 
part of proposed Janus Solar Use Permit application. Prior to acting upon the proposed 
Use Permit, the Planning Commission must consider the totality of the EIR record 
including any written comments received on the adequacy of the FEIR and proposed 
Use Permit. 

 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION: 
 
Section 2.1 (page 2-1) through Section 2.4 (page 2-20) of the DEIR contains a detailed 
description of the proposed project.  In general, the project consists of three major 
components: a solar energy generating facility, an energy storage system, and the 
generation tie-line (Figure 2-2 of the DEIR). A general overview of each component is as 
follows: 

Solar Energy Generating Component 
 
The solar energy generating component would consist of PV solar modules (also known 
as panels) arranged into arrays supported by a racking system and tracker units that 
track the sun. Each tracking assembly would consist of steel posts on which the frames 
for the PV modules rest. Each tracker would hold PV modules mounted on this metal 
framework structure and range between 6 and 13 feet above grade, depending on 
the topography. The trackers are organized in rows in a uniform grid pattern or solar 
array and the project would include approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple 
solar arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system. The PV modules themselves 
would be dark blue or black in color, with anti-reflection coating to minimize light 
reflection. 

The project would include a substation anticipated to be located in the northwest 
portion of the project site. The substation would include a step-up transformer to 
increase the output voltage from the module blocks (34.5 kV) to the voltage of the 60-
kV gen-tie line, protective relay and metering equipment, utility and customer revenue 
metering, lightening arrestor, disconnect, circuit breaker and a station service 
transformer that would provide power to the substation and its weatherproof control 
house.

The overall footprint of the project’s on-site substation is anticipated to be 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 5 

approximately three acres with gen-tie power poles up to 80 feet in height. An 
emergency generator for use in the event that the regional transmission system  
fails also would be at this substation; this emergency generator would provide 
emergency power until the regional transmission system restores operations.   

A complete description of this component is contained within Section 2.4.1.1 of the 
DEIR

Energy Storage System 

The battery energy storage system (BESS) is expected to be located adjacent to the 
project’s substation. Batteries would be contained within metal enclosures measuring 
approximately 20 to 60 feet long, 8 to 12 feet wide  and 8 to 12 feet in height and 
situated on concrete pads. The maximum combined footprint for the BESS would be 
approximately 3.5 acres. Key components of the BESS include batteries and battery 
storage system enclosures and controllers, converters, inverters, and transformers.  

Each BESS container would contain a safety system that would be triggered 
automatically when the system senses imminent fire danger. The fire safety system inside 
each enclosure would shut down the unit if any hazard indicators are detected. If the 
safety system detects a potential issue as detected by the smoke and temperature 
sensors, the batteries would be automatically de-energized by opening the electrical 
contacts, and HVAC units and fans would be shut off. 

A complete description of this component is contained within Section 2.4.1.2 of the 
DEIR. 

Generation Tie Line 

Energy produced from the solar arrays would be collected at the project’s substation 
and transmitted to the existing PG&E-owned Cortina Substation along Walnut Avenue.   
In order to interconnect the project to the Cortina Substation, the Applicant would 
construct a new 60 kV gen-tie line that would extend from the project’s on-site 
substation about 2 miles within the County’s ROW on Spring Valley Road to reach 
Walnut Drive.  At Walnut Drive, the transmission line would be located within the Colusa 
County road ROW for approximately 2 miles on existing, retrofitted, or new poles to the 
Cortina substation. Along this route, the gen-tie line would cross the Colusa-Tehama 
Canal, administered by USBR. The gen-tie line would include tubular steel poles of up to 
80 feet in height. The Applicant’s gen-tie construction would terminate at the PG&E 
Cortina Substation property line.  At the Cortina Substation  PG&E would construct 
network upgrades, interconnection facilities, and a span of transmission line that 
extends from the Cortina Substation property line to the new bay station within the 
existing footprint of the PG&E facility. All PG&E improvements would be constructed 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 6 

within the existing Cortina Substation footprint. 

A complete description of this component is contained within Sections 2.4.1.3 and 
2.4.1.4 of the DEIR. 

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION:

Project construction would consist of two major stages. The first stage would include site 
preparation, grading, and preparing staging areas and on-site access routes. The 
second stage would involve assembling the trackers and constructing electrical 
interconnection facilities.  It is anticipated that construction would occur during an 11-
month period and would occur primarily during daylight hours, Mondays through 
Fridays 7:00 am to 7:00 pm and potentially 8:00 am to 8:00 pm on Saturdays and 
Sundays.  The applicant proposes potential nighttime hours if necessary for material and 
equipment deliveries and/or where the schedule has been delayed due to weather or 
other events. These nighttime activities would be performed with temporary lighting, 
which would be directed downward to minimize impacts to neighboring properties and 
wildlife in the project vicinity. 

The on-site construction workforce would consist of laborers, craftspeople, supervisory 
personnel, and support personnel. The on-site assembly and construction workforce is 
expected to reach a peak of approximately 200 workers; the average number of 
workers on-site is anticipated to be approximately 50 to 150.  On average, it is 
anticipated that 25 percent of worker trips to the site would be in carpools. Workers 
would commute to the site from nearby communities and given the number of workers 
required it is anticipated that some would travel from more-distant areas in the 
Sacramento Valley area. 

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (DEIR) SUMMARY: 

As previously discussed, a DEIR or the project has been prepared pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. Detailed information about 
the project’s potential impacts are contained with the DEIR documents.  The following is 
an overview of the issues considered in the DEIR:  

Section 4.1 Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

The project site largely consists of grazing land with some areas used for dryland crop 
production and has been classified as Farmland of Local Importance under the 
California Department of Conservation’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program.  
The entirety of the project site is included in a Williamson Act contract.  The applicant 
has filed a Petition for Cancellation of Contract for the Williamson Act contract.  In 
order to cancel the contract, the County must find (1) that other public concerns 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 7 

outweigh the objectives of the Williamson Act and (2) that there is no proximate 
noncontracted land that is both available and suitable for the proposed use or that 
development of the contracted land would provide more contiguous patterns of urban 
development (Government Code Section 51282(c)). 

As stated in the EIR, development of the proposed solar facility is in the public interest in 
order to address the State’s goal of generating emissions-free electricity energy.  The 
proposed project would assist the State of California in achieving its goal of providing 
electricity 100 percent GHG emissions free by 2045.  The subject property is not prime 
farmland and its conversion would not have a significant adverse effect on agricultural 
resources.   

Mitigation Measure AGR-1 requires the Applicant to file a Petition for Cancellation of 
Contract for the Williamson Act contract on the project site and approval of the 
Petition for Cancellation would be required prior to development of the project   With 
incorporation of this mitigation measure, the EIR determined that impacts to agricultural 
resources were reduced to a level that is less than significant. 

Section 4.2 Air Quality 

Air pollutant emissions associated with the project would occur over the short term from 
construction related activities including equipment exhaust, vehicle travel on paved 
and unpaved roads, and fugitive dust from soil disturbance activities. Construction 
activities would produce combustion emissions from construction equipment engines 
and motor vehicles transporting the construction crew, equipment, and materials. 
Exhaust emissions from construction activities would vary daily as activity levels change.  

Once constructed, the project would operate seven days per week and 365 days per 
year. Only occasional, on-site maintenance is expected to be required following 
commissioning. Operations and maintenance activities would require up to three 
workers performing visual inspections, monitoring plant performance, executing minor 
repairs, and responding to needs for plant adjustment. 

An air quality analysis report (Appendix “C” of the DIER) has been prepared to evaluate 
potential air quality and greenhouse gas (GHG) impacts associated with the proposed 
solar project.  As detailed, during construction, unmitigated NOx emissions would 
exceed the BCAQMD daily and annual significance thresholds. However, mitigated 
NOX emissions would fall below the BCAQMD significance thresholds. Both unmitigated 
and mitigated ROG emissions are below the annual threshold of significance. Both 
unmitigated and mitigated PM10 emissions are below the daily threshold of 
significance. 

Unmitigated and mitigated daily operational emissions are below significance 
thresholds for all pollutants.  During the longer-term operational phase, the project 
would have routine inspection and maintenance activities that would result in a net 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 8 

increase in emissions although, the increase in emissions would not exceed any 
significance threshold. Construction and operational emissions are summarized in Tables 
7, 8, and 9 of Appendix “C”

The mitigation measures that have been included require that during construction of 
the project, all disturbed areas including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and 
unpaved roads shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible 
covered and enclosed by the construction contractor.  Materials transported offsite 
shall be wetted and covered securely and at least 2 feet of freeboard maintained.  In 
addition, traffic speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 miles per hour and 
construction activities shall be curtailed when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 
150. 

In addition, a dust suppressant will be required to be applied to Spring Valley Road, the 
unpaved road accessing the site, before and during the construction period as needed 
to reduce dust associated with truck traffic.  During anticipated peak truck trip periods 
of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries, a traffic control flagger shall be present on 
Spring Valley Road and shall enforce a 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles 
on unpaved roads, and shall monitor and log dust conditions.  Additional long term dust 
control measures are also required. 

During construction, diesel particulate filters or other CARB-verified diesel emission 
control strategies shall be installed on construction equipment. All on- and off-road 
diesel equipment shall not idle for more than 5 minutes. Signs shall be posted in the 
designated queuing areas and/or job sites to remind drivers and operators of the 5-
minute idling limit. All construction equipment shall be maintained in proper tune 
according to the manufacturer’s specifications. Equipment must be checked and 
determined to be running in proper condition before the start of work. Idling, staging 
and queuing of diesel equipment within 1,000 feet of sensitive receptors shall be limited. 

With incorporation of these mitigation measures, the EIR determined that impacts to air 
quality are less than significant. 

Section 4.3 Aesthetics 
 
Although some portion of the project site may be visible from a relatively large area, 
the degree of visibility would depend on distance and view angle. Generally, the 
project site would be most visible from viewpoints within 1 mile, while site visibility would 
diminish as distance increases and view angle decreases. Air quality, including dust and 
other visible particulates, can affect visibility in the area. Distance is only one of the 
factors that determine visibility of a site from a viewpoint. Terrain, vegetation, and 
structural features can obscure views that might otherwise be available at a certain 
distance. 

In order to evaluate the potential visual impact of the project, a Visual Impact 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 9 

Assessment was prepared to identify and evaluate the potential visual and aesthetic 
impacts associated with construction and operation of the project (Appendix “D” of 
the DEIR).  Potential visual impacts were characterized by determining the level of visual 
contrast introduced by the project based on comparing existing conditions and photo 
simulations. Visual contrast is a means to evaluate the level of modification to existing 
landscape features. Existing landscape is defined by the visual characteristics (form, 
line, color, and texture) associated with the landform (including water), vegetation, 
and existing development.  The level of visual contrast introduced by a project can be 
measured by changes in the visual characteristics that would occur because of project 
implementation.  The greater the difference between the character elements found 
within the existing landscape and with a proposed project, the more apparent the level 
of visual contrast.  

In the visual impact analysis Key Observation Points (KOPs) were identified based on 
locations from which the project infrastructure would potentially be visible and 
noticeable to the casual observer. The “casual observer” is considered an observer 
who is not actively looking or searching for the project, but who is engaged in activities 
at locations with potential views of the project, such as hiking or driving along a scenic 
road. If the project infrastructure is not noticeable to the casual observer, visual impacts 
can be considered minor to negligible. 

Based on the visual impact analysis, the EIR determined that project impacts to 
aesthetics would be less than significant, and no mitigation measures were required. 

Section 4.4 Biological Resources  

The project site is located in northern California within the Sacramento Valley Subregion 
of the Great Central Valley Region. This region experiences hot, dry summers, mild 
winters, and annual rainfall averaging between roughly 5 and 25 inches. Elevation at 
the project site ranges from approximately 144 to 331 feet. The project site currently 
supports cattle grazing and grain cultivation. Vegetation on the project site includes 
non-native grassland, cultivated grain fields, low growing herbaceous plants, and 
disturbed riparian areas and drainages with sparse native and non-native trees, as well 
as non-native cultivated tree rows along the proposed gen-tie line. Wetlands and 
standing water also occur in small areas on the project site 

Vegetation communities of the project were mapped within the Biological Survey Area 
(BSA) during the surveys, which is defined as the project site and 150-meter buffer. No 
CDFW sensitive natural communities were found. All vegetated areas of the project site 
have previously been or are currently being used for grazing and/or cultivation of 
common wheat.  

The proposed project site supports an assortment of plants and wildlife and provides 
shelter, cover, roosting, foraging, and breeding habitats to mammals, birds, 
invertebrates, reptiles, and amphibians as year-round residents, seasonal residents, 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 10 

and/or migrants. Overall, the project site supports low quality wildlife habitat since it is 
disturbed by cattle grazing and grain cultivation and lacks complex vegetation 
communities. During the 2019, 2020, and 2021 field surveys, 93 native and non-native 
plant species, six mammals, 35 birds, six invertebrates, three reptiles, and two amphibian 
species were recorded within the BSA.  

To evaluate the potential impacts, a habitat characterization report was prepared 
(Appendix “E1” of the DEIR), a biolocifcal survey report was prepared (Appendix “E2” of 
the DEIR, and a Burrowing Owl Report was prepared (Appenix “E3” of the DEIR). 

The EIR identified potential impacts to the following plant and animal species: Parry’s 
rough tarplant, burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, and American badger.  Mitigation 
measures, including project site pre-construction surveys for the species, have been 
incorporated into the project to address potential impacts to these species.   In 
addition, mitigation measures including Worker Environmental Awareness Training, Best 
Management Practices for Biological Resources including limiting the areas of 
disturbance, flagging sensitive habitats including riparian areas and state and federally 
protected wetlands, covering excavated holes and trenches with plywood at the end 
of the work day, and enforcement of a maximum speed limit of 20 miles per hour will 
also be required.  Finally, during the nesting bird breeding season (February 1 to August 
31), a qualified biologist shall conduct preconstruction surveys of all potential nesting 
habitat within the project site where construction is planned. 

With incorporation of these mitigation measures, impacts to biological resources were 
defined as being reduced to a level that is less than significant. 

Section 4.5 Cultural Resources 

The construction of the proposed project is not anticipated to impact historic or unique 
resources. Based on the background studies and the Phase I field survey, there are no 
known resources found in the project area or within the transmission line corridor that 
meet CEQA’s definition of a historical resource or unique resource. 

Construction activities related to trenching, excavating and grading could potentially 
impact previously unidentified, buried archaeological resources.  To address this 
impact, prior to project construction related to ground disturbing activities (e.g., 
vegetation removal, excavation, trenching, grading), the project proponent would 
conduct a worker education awareness program for project construction personnel. A 
qualified archaeologist will be retained for the project and will prepare and present the 
initial cultural resource briefing of the worker education awareness program prior to 
ground disturbing activities.  
   
In addition, a qualified archaeologist would be retained to prepare an Inadvertent 
Discovery Plan for the project and to be on-call in the event of an inadvertent 
discovery. The Inadvertent Discovery Plan will provide protocols and notification 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 11 

procedures in the event of an inadvertent discovery. During project construction, 
should subsurface archaeological resources be discovered, all ground disturbing 
activities within 50 feet of the find would cease and the qualified archaeologist would 
be contacted to assess the significance of the find according to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5 and/or NRHP criteria (as applicable).    

The County and Applicant would continue to consult with interested tribes throughout 
the planning process and construction of the project, as applicable. A tribal monitor 
from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation (or other local tribe as available) would be notified 
to participate in monitoring of visibly exposed, excavated subsurface soils associated 
with ground-disturbing construction activities.  At the completion of construction, a final 
monitoring report would be prepared for the project that summarizes the daily 
monitoring activities and resolution of any inadvertent discoveries identified during 
construction of the project.  With these mitigation measures required, the DEIR 
determined that the impacts to cultural resources are less than significant. 

Section 4.6 Energy  

California’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) Program was enacted in 2002 and 
accelerated in 2006, requiring investor-owned utilities to obtain 20 percent of their 
electric supply from renewable energy sources, such as solar, by 2010. On April 12, 2011, 
Governor Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 2X, requiring California retail electric providers, 
such as PG&E, to procure 33 percent of their retail energy sales from eligible renewable 
sources by 2020. In October 2015, Governor Brown signed into legislation SB 350, which 
requires retail sellers and publicly owned utilities to procure 50 percent of their electricity 
from eligible renewable energy resources by 2030.  On September 10, 2018, Governor 
Brown signed SB 100, establishing that 100 percent of all electricity in California must be 
obtained from renewable and zero-carbon energy resources by December 31, 2045. 

The project would assist the state of California in achieving or exceeding its RPS and 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reduction objectives by developing and constructing 
a new California RPS-qualified 80 MW solar power generating facility. Potential impacts 
to energy have been determined to be less than significant by the DEIR and that no 
mitigation measures are required. 

Section 4.7 Geology, Soils and Paleontological Resources  

The surface geologic unit mapped within the project site is Plio-Pleistocene alluvium 
(QPc). This unit is assessed as having moderate paleontological sensitivity and therefore, 
a moderate probability of containing fossils.  The local geologic unit that 
stratigraphically underlies the QPc surface unit is Cretaceous sedimentary rock (Ku), 
which also is considered to have moderate (though little known) paleontological 
sensitivity. This unit has contained fossils at other locations, including one that is only 3 
miles from the project site.    

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 12 

To address potential impacts, prior to construction activities on-site personnel would be 
trained in basic recognition of fossils and appropriate procedures to notify 
management in order to engage a qualified paleontological specialist in the event 
that fossils are discovered during construction activities.  In addition, a qualified 
paleontological specialist would be retained on an on-call status, to be brought on-site 
to evaluate the significance of any unanticipated discovery of paleontological 
resources and determine if additional study is warranted.  With these mitigation 
measures required, the DEIR determined that the impacts to geology and soils are less 
than significant. 

Section 4.8 Greenhouse Gases  

Construction of the project would increase greenhouse gas (GHG) generation, which 
can contribute to global climate change. The project will also decrease GHG emissions 
by providing renewable power. 

Construction emissions would be associated with vehicle engine exhaust from 
construction equipment and vehicles, equipment and material deliveries, and 
construction worker commuting trips. Construction-related GHG emissions are 
considered temporary and short term.   

While GHG would be generated from construction and occasional operation and 
maintenance activities, the project would result in a net reduction in GHG from the 
production of solar energy that would potentially replace energy generated by fossil 
fuels. The project would assist in the attainment of the State’s goals by using a 
renewable source of energy that could displace electricity generated by fossil-fuel-fired 
power plants, and therefore would comply with the goals and objectives of the State. 

Potential impacts to greenhouse gases have been determined by the DEIR to be less 
than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

Section 4.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials  

The project would not involve the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials, as defined by the Hazardous Materials Transport Uniform Safety Act. The 
majority of the waste generated during construction would be non-hazardous, and 
consist primarily of cardboard, wood pallets, wire, scrap metal, common trash, and 
wood wire spools. Most construction waste would be disposed of at a non-hazardous 
landfill or at a recycling facility whenever feasible. Construction would generate an 
average of approximately 20 cubic yards of non-hazardous solid waste per week over 
the period of construction. Sanitary waste would be managed using portable toilets 
and hauled for off-site disposal. 

During construction of the project, diesel and gasoline fuels and other hazardous 
materials such as oils, solvents, hydraulic fluids, and paints commonly associated with 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 13 

construction equipment may be stored on-site. These materials would be stored and 
handled in a manner to prevent accidental release, i.e., consistent with the hazardous 
materials handling Best Management Practices (BMP) and other measures contained 
within the required Stormwater Pollutions Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which would require 
them to be stored within locked aboveground containers with secondary containment. 

With these protections in place, potential impacts to hazards and hazardous materials 
have been determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation 
measures are required. 

Section 4.10 Hydrology and Water Quality 

The portions of the project site that would be disturbed for construction are relatively 
flat, with little potential for any concentrated runoff to occur. Construction would 
involve the use of bulldozers, graders, semi-trucks, and various other types of heavy 
equipment for vegetation removal, grubbing, grading, and installation of roads and 
other facilities. These construction activities would involve minor changes to on-site 
topography; however, these activities would potentially loosen existing surface soils and 
sediments, increasing the potential for erosion during storm events. Water used for dust 
suppression also has the potential to generate runoff that could transport sediments 
and dissolved solids. The use of construction equipment on-site may involve the 
accidental release of fuel, oils, brake dust, lubricants, antifreeze, and other potentially 
hazardous substances at the project construction site. These water quality pollutants 
could be delivered to surface water bodies during storm events, and/or be infiltrated 
into groundwater and the underlying aquifer, resulting in the degradation of water 
quality. 

The project will be subject to compliance with the NPDES General Permit for Stormwater 
Discharge Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Construction 
General Permit). The Construction General Permit would include development and 
implementation of a SWPPP. The objectives of a SWPPP are to identify pollutant sources 
that may be delivered off-site (in the form of runoff) and affect the quality of 
stormwater discharge; to implement site controls and practices to reduce stormwater 
pollution; and to protect water quality of receiving waters. The SWPPP would include 
site-specific BMPs to minimize erosion on-site and reduce or otherwise prevent 
conditions of erosion and stormwater runoff. 

Diesel and gasoline fuels and other hazardous materials such as oils, solvents, hydraulic 
fluids, and paints commonly associated with construction equipment would be stored 
and handled in a manner to prevent accidental release, i.e., consistent with the 
hazardous materials handling BMPs, Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure Plan, 
and other measures contained within the required SWPPP. 

With implementation of the General Construction Permit conditions, including the 
preparation and implementation of a SWPPP, Spill Prevention, Control, and 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 14 

Countermeasure Plan, and associated BMPs, potential impacts to hydrology and water 
quality have been determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation 
measures are required. 

Section 4.11 Land Use and Planning  

The project site is on three parcels of private land that total approximately 1,024 acres 
and is currently operated as a cattle ranch. To avoid environmental constraints, 
approximately 768 acres of the 1,024-acre site would be used for the project. The 
project site is surrounded by rural residential, agricultural fields, and undeveloped land. 
Spring Valley Road runs through the project site from north to south. The gen-tie line 
follows Spring Valley Road north to Walnut Drive at which point it follows Walnut Drive to 
PG&E’s Cortina substation. The nearest community to the project site is the city of 
Williams, which is located approximately 6.5 miles northeast. The project site lies within 
the County’s jurisdiction and land uses on the project site are governed by the County’s 
General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

The project would not physically divide an established community as the construction, 
operation, and decommissioning phases of the project do not propose any features 
that would create a physical barrier that would hinder existing community access. 
Additionally, the project would not involve the removal of any existing publicly used 
means of access. Therefore, the project would not physically divide an established 
community. 

The project site is zoned Foothill Agriculture (F-A) and Exclusive Agriculture (E-A). These 
zone districts allow for commercial scale solar facility projects through the Use Permit 
process, as described in Zoning Code §44-2.20.30. Compliance with conditions of 
approval for the Use Permit will ensure the project will not conflict with the underlying F-
A and E-A zones. Potential impacts to land use and planning have been determined by 
the DIER to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

Section 4.12 Mineral Resources 

Based on the geologic setting, the only mineral resources with the potential to occur 
near the project site are aggregate resources. Alluvial geologic units in the region are 
potential sources of sand and gravel that could have value as a mineral resource 
commodity. Because sand and gravel are low-value, high-volume resources, the 
economic value and feasibility of developing them is predicated on the existence of 
high local demand from the construction industry. The closest gravel mine is Lovelady 
Ranch, which has been closed for a number of years, approximately 20 miles northwest 
of the project site. 

There are no active mining claims within the project site, nor is there any locatable 
mineral activity within the project site boundary. Based on the geological environment 
and historical trends, the potential for occurrence of locatable minerals is low within the 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 15 

surrounding area. However, none of these resources occurs within 30 miles of the 
project site and they are unlikely to be found within the geologic units that underlie the 
site or surrounding area.  Potential impacts to mineral resources have been determined 
by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

Section 4.13 Noise 

The project site is surrounded by rural residential, agricultural fields, and undeveloped 
land. The nearest residential properties are located directly adjacent to the southern 
project boundary and the northwestern project boundary, while a mixed 
residential/agricultural property is located directly adjacent to the northern project 
boundary.  Spring Valley Road runs through the project site from north to south. The 
gen-tie line follows Spring Valley Road north to Walnut Drive at which point it follows 
Walnut Drive to PG&E’s Cortina substation. 

Human response to noise varies considerably from one individual to another. Effects of 
noise at various levels can include interference with sleep, concentration, and 
communication, and can cause physiological and psychological stress and hearing 
loss. Given these effects, some land uses are considered more sensitive to ambient 
noise levels than others. In general, residences, schools, hotels, hospitals, and nursing 
homes are considered to be the most sensitive to noise. These locations are referred to 
as noise sensitive areas (NSAs). Places such as churches, libraries, and cemeteries, 
where people tend to pray, study, and/or contemplate also are NSAs. Commercial and 
industrial uses are considered the least noise sensitive.  As shown in Figure 4.13-1 of the 
DEIR, there are multiple residences near the project site. 

Construction of the project will occur over approximately 11 months and has the 
potential to generate noise impacts from construction equipment and related activities 
to surrounding properties and residences   Construction of the project may cause short-
term, but unavoidable noise impacts that could be loud enough at times to temporarily 
interfere with speech communication outdoors and indoors with windows closed at two 
of the neighboring residences, and with windows open at two other residences. The 
noise levels resulting from the construction activities would vary significantly depending 
on several factors such as the type and age of equipment, specific equipment 
manufacture and model, the operations being performed, and the overall condition of 
the equipment and exhaust system mufflers.      
 
As proposed, project construction would occur between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, and between 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Saturday and Sunday in 
compliance with Section 13-8 of the County Code. Once the project is constructed 
and operational, the primary noise sources are the inverters, transformers, battery 
storage heating, ventilation, air conditioning (HVAC) units, and battery storage 
inverters.  Noise from normal operations is not anticipated to be significant. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 16 

To address potential noise impacts during construction, the project will be required to 
implement construction management protocols which include: maintain all 
construction tools and equipment in good operating order according to 
manufacturers’ specifications; limit use of major excavating and earth-moving 
machinery to daytime hours; to the extent practicable, schedule construction activity 
during normal working hours on weekdays when higher sound levels are typically 
present and are found acceptable; equip any internal combustion engine used for any 
purpose on the job or related to the job with a properly operating muffler that is free 
from rust, holes, and leaks; limit possible evening shift work to low noise activities such as 
welding, wire pulling, and other similar activities; and utilize a Complaint Resolution 
Procedure to address any noise complaints received from residents.  With these 
mitigation measures required, the DEIR determined that noise impacts will be less than 
significant. 

Although the DEIR has determined that noise levels would not be a significant impact 
and comply with the County Code, County staff believes that through the Use Permit 
restrictions a condition should be added that limits the import or export of materials and 
heavy equipment to just Monday through Friday and that on-site construction hours on 
weekends should be limited to 8:00 a.m. though 5 p.m. 

Section 4.14 Population and Housing  

The project site is located approximately 6.5 miles southwest of the city of Williams. It is 
reasonable to assume that construction workers may drive approximately 50 miles to 
the project site during construction, operation, or decommissioning from the 
surrounding counties of Butte, Glenn, Lake, Sutter, and Yolo.  In 2019, Colusa County 
had an estimated population of 21,547 representing an approximate 0.7 percent 
increase from the 2010 population of 21,419. The city of Williams had a higher rate of 
growth during the 2010-2019 period, but its actual growth was only 314 persons. The city 
of Colusa had an estimated population of 6,060 in 2019, an approximate 2.6 percent 
decrease from 2010.   

In 2020, Colusa County had an estimated 8,227 housing units with a vacancy rate of 6.7 
percent such that there were 716 vacant housing units.  The number of households is 
expected to increase by 7 percent in Colusa County over the period from 2020-2028.  
The County is expected to increase housing by 526 units between 2019 and 2028. 

The project is not anticipated to increase the need for additional housing units as 
workers would be expected to commute to the site from local and regional towns and 
cities, rather than relocate. Therefore, construction, operation, and decommissioning of 
the project is not expected to require substantial numbers of new housing units.  
Potential impacts to population and housing have been determined by the DEIR to be 
less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 17 

Section 4.15 Public Services 

The Williams Fire Protection Authority will provide fire services to the project site.  The fire 
station is located in the city of Williams and is approximately 7 miles from the project 
site.  The project will be designed in compliance with federal, state, and local worker 
safety and protection codes and regulations which will minimize the potential for the 
occurrence of fire. 

Project maintenance and operation may introduce potential ignition sources such as 
transformers, electric transmission line (including gen-tie inline), substations, 
maintenance vehicles, and gas/electric-powered machinery. The proposed inverters 
and photovoltaic arrays may also be identified as a potential ignition source. However, 
the potential fire risk is low for these project components. All battery components for the 
battery energy storage system would be installed on concrete pads and contained 
within an enclosure to minimize the potential for sparks or ignition. All such enclosures 
would be equipped with a fire suppression system. 

A Battery Storage Fire Management Plan is also required to be submitted to the Williams 
Fire Authority for review and approval.  This mitigation measure requires the battery 
containers to receive a UL 9540 certification.  If a UL 9540 certification cannot be 
provided, a Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory, approved by the Williams Fire 
Authority and qualified to conduct the field testing, would conduct a field evaluation of 
one typical system utilizing the field evaluation procedures detailed by that testing 
laboratory, as approved by the Williams Fire Authority. Upon passing the field test, the 
testing laboratory would provide a label certifying that the system has been evaluated 
to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds these standards.            

In addition, a Wildland Fire Management Plan is required to be submitted to the 
Williams Fire Authority.  The Plan would detail implementation measures to control and 
maintain the vegetation throughout the project site to eliminate wildland fire hazards.   

To encourage and incentivize the construction of commercial solar projects, the State 
of California has passed legislation which excludes properties developed with 
commercial solar facilities from paying increased property taxes that would normally be 
generated by physical improvements.  This loss of additional property tax revenue has 
the potential to financially impact both the County and public service providers (i.e. fire 
protection, sheriff, parks and recreation, etc.).  To address this impact, a mitigation 
measure is included which requires the project proponents to enter into a Public Service 
Mitigation Agreement with the County.    

The Agreement will require the payment of a Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) to the 
County each year for the life of the project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years 
until the project is decommissioned, the site restored, and the Use Permit is no longer 
activated (voided) by the County.  The PSMF is a total of $110,000 which is paid directly 
to the County for unrestricted County General Fund uses.  In addition, a $15,000 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 18 

payment would be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, a $15,000 
payment would be paid to the City of Williams to be used to support activities in the 
Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a $15,000 payment would be paid to 
the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District. 
 

With these mitigation measures, the DEIR has determined that impacts to Public 
Services will be less than significant. 

Section 4.16 Recreation  

Increases in use of recreational facilities typically are associated with substantial 
increases in population or a substantial reduction in the availability of existing parks or 
other recreational facilities. The project site is not located within or adjacent to a 
residential area, or within the immediate vicinity of any parks or recreational facilities, 
and there no parks or existing recreational facilities located on the site. No residential 
facilities are proposed as part of the project. However, as previously discussed to offset 
any short-term or long-term impacts to the area’s recreation districts, a PSMF would be 
paid for the life of the project. 

Section 4.17 Transportation 

State Route (SR) 20 runs as close as 1 mile from the project site, to the north and west. 
Interstate 5 runs north to south, approximately 7.2 miles east of the project site. The 
western portion of the site is intersected by Spring Valley Road, an undivided, two-lane 
County road. Walnut Drive, also a two-lane, undivided County road, provides access 
from Spring Valley Road to State Route 20 north of the project site. 

Due to the site’s rural location, current traffic on the roads immediately adjacent to the 
project is light. The Caltrans data available for Colusa County includes I-5 and SR 20. I-5 
included 30,800 vehicles per day, and SR 20 included 5,900 vehicles per day within 
Colusa County. Near the project location the roads are rural without dedicated turn 
lanes. The existing traffic is expected to be light, and based on experience with similar 
projects, rural roads like these are estimated to have between 500 and 800 vehicles per 
day, or less than 100 vehicles during peak hour.   

Spring Valley Road is a two-lane undivided County road that provides access from the 
site via Walnut Drive to SR 20. Most vehicle trips generated by the project would travel 
through the intersection of Spring Valley Road and Walnut Drive to get to the project 
site. Travelers from Colusa and Williams would be expected to access the site from SR 
20 via East Camp Road, to Beauchamp Road, which transitions to Walnut Drive. There 
are no dedicated turn lanes onto or off of Spring Valley Road or Walnut Drive in the 
vicinity of the project site. Average annual daily traffic and peak hour volumes on 
Spring Valley Road and Walnut Drive are not available. 

Peak hours for traffic generated by the project are expected to be daily between 6:00 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 19 

a.m. and 7:00 a.m. and between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., when construction workers 
would commute to and from the project site. It is expected that nearly all workers 
would arrive and leave during the peak hours. Conservatively, a small number of 
workers are included as either leaving during the morning peak hour or arriving during 
the evening peak hour. 

Once constructed, the project would operate 7 days per week and 365 days per year. 
Only occasional, on-site maintenance is expected to be needed following 
commissioning. Initially, personnel would likely visit the project site daily or weekly, but it 
is anticipated that eventually maintenance visits would be reduced to once a month or 
less, such that facility operations would generate little traffic. 

Operation and maintenance activities would require up to three workers performing 
visual inspections, monitoring plant performance, executing minor repairs, and 
responding to needs for plant adjustment. On intermittent occasions, the presence of 5 
to 30 workers may be required for repairs or replacement of equipment, panel 
cleaning, and other specialized maintenance. Due to the infrequent operations and 
maintenance worker trips to the site, there would be no impact to peak hour traffic 
associated with ongoing operations of the project. 

Construction of the project has the potential to damage area roads.  The applicant will 
be required to conduct both pre-project and post-project inspections of construction 
access routes approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director that are used 
during construction of the project.  Damage determined to have been caused by 
project construction would be repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  
With this mitigation measure required, the DEIR has determined that the project would 
have less than a significant impact. 

Section 4.18 Tribal Cultural Resources 

The project area and surrounding region is within the ancestral territory of the Patwin 
band of the Southern Wintun people. An ethnographic review of tribal cultural 
resources was performed and review of available ethnographic documents. In 
addition, AB 52 tribal notification consultation letters were sent out to tribes. 

Construction activities related to the project has the potential to impact tribal cultural 
resources.  Implementation of the three previously discussed Cultural Resources 
mitigation measures (Cultural Resource Worker Education/Training), Inadvertent 
Discovery of Archaeological Resources During Construction, and Native American 
Tribal Consultation and Monitoring, will also ensure that tribal resources are 
appropriately addressed, therefore, reducing any potential impacts to less than 
significant.    

Section 4.19 Utilities and Service Systems 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 20 

The relevant utility or service systems for the project are the water supply, wastewater, 
stormwater, solid waste disposal, gas and electrical, and telecommunication utilities 
that would provide service to the project site.  

Current water facilities on-site are one hand dug well and several manmade reservoirs 
currently used to water the land for cattle grazing. The city of Williams is the purveyor of 
a public water system located approximately 11.4 miles from the project site. The City 
has indicated that it can provide water for the project through a fire hydrant located at 
180 N. Virginia Way in the city of Williams. Water obtained from the fire hydrant would 
be trucked to the project site. 

The DEIR determined that the project would primarily require water during construction 
for dust control and that total water volume that would be used during construction 
was 46 acre-feet (approximately 15,000,000 total gallons).  However, as previously 
discussed dust suppressant would be used on Spring Valley Road.  Not only would this 
reduce dust levels, but it would reduce the number of water trucks and amount of 
water necessary to control the dust on Spring Valley Road. 

During operation and maintenance, water would be used for panel washing and 
maintenance. The expected annual water consumption during operation would be 
approximately 1 acre-foot per year (approximately 326,000 gallons). No new wells 
would be constructed as part of the project. The proposed project would not require or 
result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water treatment facilities.  
Due to the relatively low amount of water used during the construction and operation 
of the life of the project, it is anticipated that the project would have sufficient water 
supplies during normal, dry, and multiple dry years. 

The proposed project would not require permanent wastewater treatment connection 
due to the small number of employees during operation. Portable toilets would be on-
site for permanent employees. Portable units would be provided for workers during 
construction. Removal of the portable units would not affect the operation or function 
of wastewater facilities that are located on or adjacent to the project. 

No on-site stormwater detention facilities are planned nor would the project require the 
construction or relocation of stormwater drainage facilities. The project has been 
designed so that site drainage would continue to follow the natural drainage pattern. 
None of the project facilities would prevent stormwater flow. Site preparation and 
construction activities would be performed in accordance with a SWPPP, or similar plan 
as appropriate, which incorporates stormwater BMPs to reduce the adverse effects of 
erosion and sedimentation. 

Based on this information, potential impacts to utilities and service systems have been 
determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are 
required. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 21 

Section 4.20 Wildfire

The primary fire protection services in the vicinity of the project site are provided by the 
Williams Fire Protection Authority (WFPA). The WFPA’s service area encompasses 
approximately 135 square miles in the City of Williams and the surrounding 
unincorporated area. The WFPA provides a full range of emergency response services, 
which include structural, wildland, and confined space fire suppression, basic response 
to hazardous materials incidents, and basic life support medical services. 

As previously discussed a series of fire management plans are required to mitigate 
potential fire risks, including wildland fire risks.  With these mitigation measures and 
review and approval required by the Williams Fire Authority, potential wildfire impacts 
are less than significant.  

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (FEIR) SUMMARY: 
 
The 45-day public review period for the DEIR began with the filing of the Notice of 
Completion (NOC) on October 14, 2021 with the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research and ended on November 29, 2021.  In addition  notices were mailed directly 
to property owner’s in the vicinity and published in the Williams Pioneer informing the 
public of the opportunity to review the DEIR, the public review time period, and that a 
public meeting had been scheduled for November 4, 2021 at Granzella’s Conference 
Room to introduce the project and provide an early opportunity to provide initial 
comments. 

Upon conclusion of the public review period, nine comments were received from seven 
property owners and their representative and two State agencies.  Since that time, 
County staff, the EIR consultant, and the applicant have worked on addressing the 
submitted comments, performed additional analysis and studies, and incorporated a 
series of revisions.  The totality of this effort represents the FEIR document which is 
attached to this staff report.  The FEIR provides an analysis and response to each of the 
issues identified in the submitted comments.  Because several comments contained the 
same issues, there is some duplication of the FEIR responses. 

The totality of the comments (including from State agencies) and responses thereto in 
the FEIR must be fully reviewed and considered.  In order to provide an overview of the 
identified issues contained within the submitted comments by the general public, a 
summary has been developed as detailed below.  Please note that this is a generalized 
summary of comments submitted by the general public for informational purposes and 
the formal responses contained with the FEIR are required to be fully considered prior to 
action on the project

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 22 

1.) Traffic 
 

a. Spring Valley Road:  The entrance to the project site is Spring Valley Road, a 
gravel County Road.  A concern has been raised that construction traffic would 
negatively impact the road and the resultant dust could negatively impact the 
production and health of the adjacent orchards.

In June 2022, a field study was conducted to observe the degree of effectiveness of the 
dust suppressant that has been historically used by private landowners on unpaved, 
rural County roads adjacent to orchards.  A liquid magnesium chloride dust suppressant 
commercially known as “Dust-Off” was applied to a portion of King Road, an unpaved 
roadway in rural Colusa County which borders existing orchards. In addition, a section 
of the roadway was also left untreated so that a direct comparison could be made 
between the treated roadway and the untreated roadway. A semi-truck with a loaded 
travel trailer traveled along the treated and untreated road at speeds of 15 MPH, 25 
MPH, and 40 MPH.

As shown in the photographs of Appendix “C”, the application of dust suppressant was 
extremely effective in mitigating dust generation at all speeds. This observation is 
consistent with field observations of the Road Department staff where Dust-Off has 
been historically applied on County Roads to control dust and prevent it from 
impacting adjacent crops. However, in order to ensure dust is not created, Mitigation 
Measure AQ-1 has been developed which includes a number of requirement including: 
(1) that the applicant apply the dust suppressant per County standards prior to and 
during construction as necessary to prevent dust; (2) construction traffic speed on 
Spring Valley Road be limited to 15 MPH; (3) during peak travels periods a traffic control 
flagger will be present on Spring Valley Road to enforce the 15 MPH speed limit and 
monitor and log dust conditions; and (4) each day during construction, the construction 
contractor shall keep a daily log of dust and weather conditions   In addition, prior to 
the application of the dust suppressant, Spring Valley Road will be graded to ensure a 
flat uniform surface. 
 
In addition to this requirement  before and during construction an additional mitigation 
measure (AQ-3: Long-Term Dust Control) has been developed which requires the 
applicant to apply the dust suppressant once a year (generally in late spring) to ensure 
that dust generated by the applicant’s operational traffic and other local traffic does 
not impact the surrounding orchards.  The timing and rate of application of the dust 
suppressant is required to be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

b) Road Conditions:  A concern has been expressed that the area roadways are 
not adequate to support the proposed construction traffic and may be damaged 
because of this traffic. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 23 

The area roadways are currently heavily impacted by existing agriculturally related 
trucking operations.  The proposed construction traffic will be of limited term and is not 
expected to negatively impact the existing roads in the area.  However, as discussed in 
the FEIR, to ensure that any impacts to the areas roadways are fully mitigated, 
Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been developed which requires that a pre-project 
inspection and a post-project inspection of road conditions be conducted in 
consultation with the Public Works Director to ensure that access roads are not 
negatively impacted by the additional traffic associated with the project.  If the Public 
Works Director determines that construction related traffic has damaged County 
roadways, the applicant is required to fix this damage. 

c) Safety Concerns:  A concern was expressed about traffic safety at both the 
intersection of Highway 20 and East Camp Road and Highway 20 and Walnut 
Drive where there are no turn lanes.  

As detailed in the FEIR, the Transportation Injury Mapping System (TIMS) data was 
reviewed for the years 2015 through 2020 (the last year which data was available).  
During those 5 years, 7 accidents were reported within 2 miles of the project site, which 
includes: 2 accidents where driver or passenger had a complaint of pain, 3 minor 
injuries, 1 serious injury accident, and 1 fatality.  Construction traffic will access the 
project site from Highway 20 and East Camp Road.  Three of the accidents recorded 
between 2015 and 2020 occurred at the intersection of Highway 20 and East Camp 
Road, including one minor injury accident in 2019 and two minor accidents with 
complaints of pain in 2015 and 2016.  These accidents appear to be the result of non-
attentiveness of the drivers as the line of sight on Highway 20 at East Camp Road is 
approximately 1 mile in length, and the project traffic itself is not anticipated to 
contribute to a greater accident rate. 

However, to bring added awareness of project related construction traffic to motorists, 
a condition of the Use Permit requires that the applicant install construction traffic 
warning signage along Highway 20 as required by Caltrans and along county roads as 
required by the Public Works Director. 

2.) Economic Impact  
 
Lack of Tax Revenue:  A concern has been raised that the project would generate little 
tax revenue to off-set the cost of public services. 

Unlike many other businesses in California, portions of solar development can be 
excluded from property taxes per State law. This property tax exclusion results in solar 
projects not providing the tax revenue needed to offset public services that they may 
require.  CEQA requires an analysis of physical impacts to the environment from a 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 24 

project; it does not require analysis of social and economic impacts. Under CEQA, “an 
economic or social change by itself is not be considered a significant effect on the 
environment”.  However, Community Development Department staff believes that 
potential economic impacts that may result in County service constraints must be fully 
considered in the review of any project so that all aspects of the project are fully 
evaluated.  In order to review the projects potential fiscal impacts, the County 
commissioned an economic impact analysis. 
 
As detailed in the Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis dated January 9, 2023 
(Attachment #1):  

a) The construction of the project is anticipated to generate $15.9 million in onetime 
economic activity (supporting 90 jobs) and generate $788,000 in onetime fiscal 
revenues to the County; 

b) On an annual ongoing basis, project operations are anticipated to generate 
$4.0 million annually in total economic activity (supporting 6 new jobs in the County); 
and 

c) On an annual ongoing basis, the project is anticipated to generate tax revenue 
directly to the County ranging from $155,000 (including Vehicle In-Lieu fees) in the first 
year of operations to $22,000 (including VLF) once all assets have depreciated (years 12 
and beyond). 

In the short-term, the project would generate significant economic activity and benefit.  
In the long term, project operations would add additional economic activity over the 
cattle operations that exist today.  With respect to property taxes, the State’s solar 
property tax exclusion does significantly reduce what property taxes would be received 
from the developed project.  However, it is important to note that even fully 
depreciated; the property tax payments would be greater than is being collected 
today.   

Currently, under the Williamson Act, the project site generates approximately $15,212 in 
total annual property taxes, with the County receiving approximately $3,514.  As part of 
the project, the property will be removed from the Williamson Act and the first year total 
tax revenue is estimated to be approximately $495,083 ($442,713 in property taxes and 
$52,370 in VLF) with the County receiving approximately $154,765, or $151 251 more 
than currently being collected.  Please note that in addition to the County, all other 
agencies in the project site’s Tax Rate Area (Williams School District, Yuba Community 
College District, Williams Fire Authority, and the Colusa Groundwater Authority) will also 
be receiving considerable more tax revenue than they are currently.  Even after the 
equipment is fully depreciated in year 12, the total amount of tax revenue is estimated 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 25 

to be approximately $71 503 ($63,939 in property taxes and $7,564 in VLF) with the 
County receiving approximately $22 352, or $18,838 more than currently being 
collected.  

While the County, as well as the other agencies in the project site’s Tax Rate Area, will 
be receiving considerably more in tax revenues than is currently being collected, staff 
was nonetheless concerned that the developed project would generate additional 
public service demands than the existing uses on the property are generating and 
whether the additional tax revenue would pay for any increased public service 
demand.  As detailed in Chapter 3 of the FEIR (Minor Revisions to the Draft EIR), a Public 
Services Mitigation Fee has been developed to ensure that any potential public service 
is fully mitigated.  As required, each year for the life of the public, the developer will pay 
$110,000 directly to the County Colusa for unrestricted use.  In addition, the developer is 
also required to pay annually $15,000 to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, 
$15,000 payment to the City of Williams to support the Williams Park and Recreation 
Department, and $15,000 to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.

In summary, between the one-time revenue, the on-going operational revenue, the 
increased property taxes, and the Public Service Mitigation Fee payments, the project 
will have a positive economic impact while ensuring that public services are fully 
funded.

3.) Visual Impact  
 
Potential Visual Impact:  A concern was expressed about the aesthetics of the project. 

Section 4.3 of the DEIR provides the initial analysis of the project aesthetics.  In this 
analysis, Key Observation Points (KOPs) were identified based on locations from which 
the project would potentially be visible and noticeable to a casual observer.  A “casual 
observer” is considered an observer who is not actively looking or searching for the 
project, but who is engaged in activities at locations with potential views of the project, 
such as hiking or driving along a road.  

In total six KOPs were selected as representative vantage points in the landscape that 
offer motorists traveling on area roadways and local residents’ views of the proposed 
project site.  Please refer to Figure 4.3-1 of the DIER for the KOP’s locations. These KOPs 
provide views of each side of the project site from publicly accessible areas.  In 
general, this analysis found that the visibility of the project would be limited except for 
vehicles traveling along Spring Valley Road.  With respect to visual impacts along Spring 
Valley Road, the DEIR found that the project would introduce dark gray color, 
geometric shapes, and horizontal lines into the landscape setting and would be visible 
to the casual observer (DEIR Figure 4.3-7)    The DEIR found that although a portion of 
the project that would be visible, the contrast would be considered moderate and the 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 26 

view would be short term for travelers as they approached the project as their focus 
would be on the road ahead.  A complete discussion of the views from the 6 KOP’s is 
contained on pages 4.3-16 - 4.3-17. 

In addition to the visual analysis contained in the DEIR, Appendix “D” of the FEIR 
included additional photo simulations of the project showing what the power poles 
along Beauchamp Drive (Walnut Avenue).  As is shown, the appearance of the poles 
would not be out of character with the existing streetscape.  It should be noted that the 
poles that were visually modeled are a dark brown color.  In order to ensure that the 
visual appearance matches the photo simulation, a condition in the Use Permit has 
been included which requires if metal poles are used, that the finish be a flat, dark 
brown color to resemble the existing wooden power poles.  

4.) Obstruction of Agricultural Aerial Operations 
 
A concern was expressed that the new gen-tie power poles would interfere with 
agricultural related aerial operations.

To evaluate this concern, the County’s Agricultural Commissioner’s office was 
contacted regarding the potential impact.  Based on information obtained from the 
Agricultural Commissioner’s Office, there are nine growers with a total of 15 permitted 
sites adjacent to the proposed gen-tie line route . These sites include orchards and field 
crops. Based on data available for the last three years, there were 27 aerial pesticide 
applications in 2019, five aerial pesticide applications in 2020, and one aerial pesticide 
application in 2021. The pole heights proposed as part of the project are similar to 
existing obstacles for aerial applicators and based on discussions with the Agricultural 
Commissioner; the introduction of the new gen-tie poles would not prevent 
agriculturally related aeronautic operations from occurring. 

 
5.) Migratory Bird Impacts 
 
A concern was expressed that birds migrating along the Pacific Flyway would mistake 
the solar panels as a water body resulting in their deaths when landing. 

The potential risks to migrating birds is discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.4, Biological 
Resources of the DEIR.   In general, the available data from PV solar array-type facilities 
indicate some instances of avian mortality resulting from collisions.  However, the best 
available scientific information to date does not indicate a significant risk of substantial 
avian mortality occurring at facilities such as the proposed project. The current research 
on the topic indicates that though avian species, and specifically aquatic habitat 
avian species, may perceive PV solar facilities as waterbodies, it remains unclear the 
proportion of species that might actually land or attempt landing.  As the Commission is 
aware, local waterfowl hunting in the County is a significant source of economic 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 27 

activity in the County.  For example  during the 2020-2021 season some 30,555 
waterfowl were harvested just in the Colusa National Wildlife Refuge and Sacramento 
National Wildlife Refuge Complex. In comparison to any waterfowl deaths as a result of 
the project, the annual recreational hunting bird harvest in the Colusa County will far 
exceed any accidental bird deaths as a result of the project. 

As previously stated, research on this issue has been limited.  Staff believes that the 
project would provide an opportunity to development statistically information on this 
matter.  As such, a condition has been developed which requires the applicant to log 
any bird deaths as a result of solar panel impacts and submit this information to the 
County on an annual basis so that this information can be quantified. 

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (FEIR) COMMENTS: 

As of the writing of the staff report, staff has received four written comments on the FEIR. 
Although we expect that there will be a number of verbal comments presented at the 
project’s hearing. 

Williams Fire Authority 
 
The first comment was received from the Williams Fire Authority (Attachment #2).  In the 
letter, the Fire Authority expresses a concern that should there ever be a fire, despite 
the mitigation measures, it would result in a potentially significant impact due to 
operational staffing issues.  In addition, the Fire Authority has a grant that will expire in 
February 2024 potentially resulting in the current two-man fire crews having to go back 
to a one-man fire crews.  The Fire Authority believes that a specific fire public service 
mitigation fee is required in order to ensure that if there is a fire that it can be 
adequately staffed from an operational perspective.  As of the writing of this staff 
report, the Fire Authority and project proponents are discussing the required level of 
funding to ensure the proposed project does not result in a significant operational 
impact to the Williams Fire Authority.  An update will be provided at the meeting. 

Department of Conservation 
 
A second letter was received on March 20, 2023 from the Department of Conservation 
(Attachment #3).  The letter stated that the FEIR did not address:

 The Project’s compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands 
within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Williamson Act contract.

 If applicable, notification of Williamson Act contract non-renewal and/or 
cancellation. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 28 

The DEIR did discuss the Williamson Act and requirement for the contract cancellation 
process in numerous sections including but not limited to Section 4.1 - beginning at 
Page 4.1-10, Section 4.14 - beginning at Page 4.1-5, Section 4.1.2.2.1 - beginning at 
Page 4.4-1, Impact 4.1-2 - beginning at Page 4.1-5, and Section 4.11.2.2.1 - beginning at 
Page 4.11-1.  In addition, early on the project review the applicant met with the Board 
of Supervisor’s Williamson Act ad hoc committee (then Supervisors Evans and Carter) to 
discuss the project and to consider whether the project was considered a compatible 
use or not with agricultural operations on site.  During this effort, the ad hoc committee 
considered the County’s existing Williamson Act program’s enabling resolution.  Please 
refer to Attachment #4 (Resolution 02-82) for the Board’s resolution setting forth the 
current permitted and compatible uses.  Item #19 of Compatible Uses lists �The 
erection, construction, alteration or maintenance of gas, electric, water or 
communication utility facilities.�  While the proposed project is an electric utility facility, 
it will displace any permitted agricultural use on site.  As such, the ad hoc committee 
believed that given this displacement the project was not compatible with agricultural 
uses on the site and  therefore  recommended that the existing Williamson Act 
contracts should be cancelled. Ultimately, the full current Board of Supervisors will make 
this determination. 

Beth Ferrini Katsaris 

A third comment letter was received from Beth Ferrini Katsaris (Attachment #5).  The 
comment letter raised concerns with: 

(1) Answers included in the application’s project questionnaire where it was 
indicated that the project would not have change scenic views, the character 
of the general area, the amount of dust in the vicinity, noise levels, or cause a 
substantial demand for municipal; 

(2) The Williamson Act Cancellation process and the recommendation from the 
Board’s Ad-Hoc Committee; 

(3) The response to the Department of Conservations DEIR comments; 
(4) The threat to public safety from fire; and 
(5) The compatibility of the project to the rural character of Spring Valley Road and 

consistency with the County’s General Plan. 

The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter 
for the complete wording of the comments.   

Clark and Nelson 

David Nelson, representing Jean Terkildsen, Matthew Ferrini, and Elizabeth Katsaris, 
submitted a comment letter on the EIR documentation (Attachment #6).   The 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 29 

comment letter raised concerns with: 

(1) The project lacks consistency with Colusa County's General Plan; and  
(2) The subject property is ineligible for inclusion within the Energy Production 

Overlay Zone. 
 
The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter 
for the complete wording of the comments.   

Matt Ferrini also submitted a comment letter (Attachment #7).  In general, the letter 
shared his concerns with the land use and visual change that the proposed project 
would have to Spring Valley, is opposed to the conversion of the agricultural ground 
into a commercial solar facility and the adverse effect on surrounding owner and 
residents, and believes that the project is not consistent with the rural character of 
Spring Valley. 

The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter 
for the complete wording of the comments.  

Finally, as of the writing of the staff report, Jean Terkildsen also submitted a comment 
letter (Attachment #8).  In general, her comment letter expressed concerns that the 
project could provide additional commercial and industrial encroachment into the 
Spring Valley area, the impact on property values, and the provision for fire protection.  

Her comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter 
for the complete wording of the comments. 

With respect to the Katsaris, Ferrini, Nelson, and Terkildsen comment letters, staff will 
provide additional information when the project is heard by the Commission.  However, 
staff wanted to provide the letters to the Commission at the earliest time with this Staff 
report package. 
 
USE PERMIT (UP 20-01): 
 
Land Use 
 
The solar facility would be located on land designated in the Colusa County General 
Plan as “Agriculture Upland,” in which cultivated agriculture, industrial and commercial 
agriculture, agricultural tourism, resource production, energy production (including 
solar), single family housing, and farmworker housing are allowed as appropriate uses 
(Colusa County General Plan Land Use Element Table LU-1).  The gen-tie power lines 
along Walnut Drive are located on land designated in the Colusa County General Plan 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 30 

as “Agriculture General” in which the same land uses are also allowed by the Colusa 
County General Plan Land. 

With respect to the zoning, the solar facility would be located on land designated as 
the Foothill Agriculture zoning district and the gen-tie power lines along Walnut Drive 
are located on land with the zoning designation of Exclusive Agriculture. Pursuant to 
Section 44-2.20.30 (Allowed Uses in the Agricultural Zones) of the Zoning Code, Energy 
Generation for Off-Site Use are permitted subject to obtaining a Conditional Use Permit. 

Pursuant to Section 44-1.70.010 (Review Authority) the Planning Commission is the 
review authority of Use Permits.  Section 44-1.80.030 (Use Permits) of the County Code 
specifies that in order to approve a Use Permit application, the Planning Commission 
must make the following findings: 

1.  The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable 
provisions of this title; and 

2.  The establishment, maintenance or operation of the use applied for will not, 
under the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and 
operating characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area of such 
use.

As detailed above, the proposed solar facility is allowed as an energy production 
facility by the General Plan and, thus, staff recommends Finding #1 be made.  With 
respect to Finding #2, the FEIR has identified potential impacts and has developed a 
series of mitigation measures in order to ensure that the proposed project is not 
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons 
residing or working in the area.  In addition, the staff has recommended additional 
conditions of approval within the Use Permit to further ensure that the project would not 
be detrimental to other properties or residents in the area.  Together these mitigation 
measures and conditions of approval address the submitted concerns regarding 
transportation impacts and hazards, dust creation, impacts to agriculture aviation, 
aesthetics, fire hazards, impacts to public services, and other the other issues that have 
been fully detailed in the FEIR documents. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
As required by CEQA, a DEIR report was prepared for the project and comments 
regarding the adequacy of that document were received.  A FEIR has been prepared 
responding to those comments and additional studies, analysis and several minor 
updates to the DIER have been made.  Together, these documents comprise the 
entirety of the EIR’s environmental record for the proposed Use Permit

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Planning Commission (ID # 9002)  Meeting of April 5, 2023 

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke  Page 31 

Attached to this staff report, Planning Staff has prepared a resolution for the 
Commission’s consideration that would certify the FEIR and approved the proposed Use 
Permit.  If the Planning Commission determines that that the FEIR along with the 
proposed mitigation measures and Use Permit conditions of approval, reduce potential 
impacts below a level of significance and that the project would not be detrimental to 
surrounding properties and residents, then the Planning Commission should adopt the 
resolution which would approve the project. 

During the course of the Commission’s review, following a review of the totality of the 
record, and all testimony received during the public hearing, should the Commission 
have any questions regarding the project that have not been addressed, the 
Commission should detail those questions so that they can be fully addressed prior to 
the Commission taken formal action on the project.  Depending on the nature of such 
questions, it may be possible that they can be answered to the Commission’s 
satisfaction at the Commission’s March meeting.  Should this not be the case, then the 
Commission should direct staff to perform the necessary additional analysis and return 
with the results to the Commission prior to acting upon the application

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Page of

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Page of

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



gplucker@countyofcolusa.com

Request for Review for the Draft Environmental Impact Report

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San Joaquin
River Basins,

Any discharge waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment
or control not only to prevent condition pollution or nuisance from occurring, but
also to maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum
benefit to the people the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis the impacts and potential
impacts the discharge on water quality, as measured by background
concentrations and applicable water quality objectives.

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



Limited Threat
Discharges to Surface Water

P.u$;gl~

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



NOVEMBER 16, 2021 

VIA EMAIL: GPLUCKER@COUNTYOFCOLUSA.COM
Greg Plucker
County of Colusa
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95932

Dear Mr. Plucker: 

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE JANUS SOLAR PROJECT,
SCH#2020070577 

The Department of Conservation’s (Department) Division of Land Resource Protection 
(Division) has reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar 
Project (Project). The Division monitors farmland conversion on a statewide basis, 
provides technical assistance regarding the Williamson Act, and administers various 
agricultural land conservation programs. We offer the following comments and 
recommendations with respect to the project’s potential impacts on agricultural land 
and resources.

Project Description

Janus Solar PV, LLC has applied to the Colusa County Community Development 
Department for a Use Permit to construct, operate, maintain, and decommission a 
photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility, with a battery energy storage system 
(BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure, to be known as the Janus Solar 
Project.

The Project would generate and store up to 80 megawatts alternating current on an 
approximately 1,024-acre site, owned by a private landowner in unincorporated 
western Colusa County. To avoid environmental constraints, an estimated 768 acres of 
the 1,024-acre site would be used for the Project. The proposed battery energy storage 
system (BESS) would extend the period of time each day that the Project could 
contribute PV-generated energy to the electrical grid. The Project would connect to 
the electrical grid at the existing Cortina Substation, which is owned and operated by 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 4 miles northeast of the 
Project site. The entirety of the Project site is included in a Williamson Act contract.

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Department Comments

The conversion of agricultural land represents a permanent reduction and significant 
impact to California’s agricultural land resources. CEQA requires that all feasible and 
reasonable mitigation be reviewed and applied to projects. Under CEQA, a lead 
agency should not approve a project if there are feasible alternatives or feasible 
mitigation measures available that would lessen the significant effects of the project.

All mitigation measures that are potentially feasible should be included in the project’s 
environmental review. A measure brought to the attention of the lead agency should 
not be left out unless it is infeasible based on its elements.

Consistent with CEQA Guidelines, the Department recommends the County consider 
agricultural conservation easements, among other measures, as potential mitigation.  
(See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 15370 [mitigation includes “compensating for the impact 
by replacing or providing substitute resources or environments, including through 
permanent protection of such resources in the form of conservation easements.”])

Mitigation through agricultural easements can take at least two forms: the outright 
purchase of easements or the donation of mitigation fees to a local, regional, or 
statewide organization or agency whose purpose includes the acquisition and 
stewardship of agricultural easements. The conversion of agricultural land should be 
deemed an impact of at least regional significance. Hence, the search for 
replacement lands should not be limited strictly to lands within the project’s surrounding 
area.

A helpful source for regional and statewide agricultural mitigation banks is the 
California Council of Land Trusts. They provide helpful insight into farmland mitigation 
policies and implementation strategies, including a guidebook with model policies and 
a model local ordinance.  The guidebook can be found at:

https://www.calandtrusts.org/resources/conserving-californias-harvest/

Of course, the use of conservation easements is only one form of mitigation that should 
be considered. Any other feasible mitigation measures should also be considered.  
Indeed, the recent judicial opinion in King and Gardiner Farms, LLC v. County of Kern 
(2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 814 (“KG Farms”) holds that agricultural conservation easements 
on a 1 to 1 ratio are not alone sufficient to adequately mitigate a project’s conversion 
of agricultural land. KG Farms does not stand for the proposition that agricultural 
conservation easements are irrelevant as mitigation. Rather, the holding suggests that 
to the extent they are considered, they may need to be applied at a greater than 1 to 
1 ratio, or combined with other forms of mitigation (such as restoration of some land not 
currently used as farmland).

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Conclusion

The Department recommends further discussion of the following issues:

The Projects compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands 
within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Williamson Act contract.
If applicable, notification of Williamson Act contract non-renewal and/or 
cancellation.

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact 
Report for the Janus Solar Project. Please provide this Department with notices of any 
future hearing dates as well as any staff reports pertaining to this project. If you have 
any questions regarding our comments, please contact Farl Grundy, Associate 
Environmental Planner via email at Farl.Grundy@conservation.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Monique Wilber

Conservation Program Support Supervisor

y

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



“AQ-1:  Dust Control Measures

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



“AQ-1:  Dust Control Measures

o

o

o

o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

o

o

o

o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



”

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



“AQ-1:  Dust Control Measures

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



.

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with 
the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or physically altered 
government facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, in 
order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for 
any of the public services:

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



i) Fire protection

ii) Police protection

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



iii) Schools

iv) Parks

.

v) Other public facilities? 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

.

Would the project conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing 
the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, would the project exacerbate 
wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of wildlife?

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



o

o

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



Ti
m

e 
of

 p
ho

to
gr

ap
h:

Da
te

 o
f p

ho
to

gr
ap

h:

W
ea

th
er

 co
nd

iti
on

:

Vi
ew

in
g 

di
re

ct
io

n:

La
tit

ud
e:

Lo
ng

tit
ud

e:

3:
55

pm

12
/0

6/
21

Fo
gg

y

So
ut

hw
es

t

39
.10

14
17

°

-1
22

.2
81

69
4 

°

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
ON

S

SI
M

UL
AT

ED
 C

ON
DI

TI
ON

S

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

e
rm

it
 #

2
0-

0
1

 (
P

D
-3

8
29

))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



E C H N I C A L M E M O R A N D U M

To: Greg Plucker, Colusa County 

From: Jamie Gomes and Sean Fisher 

Subject: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact 
Analysis; EPS #212142 

Date: January 9, 2023 

Introduct ion and Project  
Overview

Colusa County (County) retained Economic & Planning 
Systems, Inc. (EPS) to prepare an economic impact analysis 
(Analysis) of the proposed Janus Solar Facility (Project), an 
80-megawatts alternating current (MWac) solar facility plus
battery energy storage system (BESS), located in the western
unincorporated portion of the County. The Project is being
proposed by Janus Solar PV, LLC, a subsidiary of RWE Solar
Development, LLC (Applicant). The Project is anticipated to
encompass 768 acres of 1,024 acres of land owned by a
private landowner. The Project consists of three major
components: a solar energy generating facility, energy storage
system, and the generation tie-line. The proposed BESS would
extend the period of time each day that the Project could
contribute PV-generated energy to the electrical grid. The
Project would connect to the electrical grid at the existing
Cortina Substation, which is owned and operated by Pacific Gas
and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 3 miles northeast
of the Project site.

The Project is located approximately 6.5 miles southwest of the 
City of Williams. The Project is to be located on 3 adjacent 
parcels zoned for foothill agriculture and are being used for 
cattle grazing. 

The purpose of this Analysis is to estimate the quantifiable one-
time construction and ongoing operational impacts of the 
proposed Project on the local economy with respect to jobs,  

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 2 

income, and total economic output.1 The economic stimulus generated by the 
Project will have a multiplying effect throughout the economy as local businesses, 
consumers, and employees associated with the Project make local expenditures. 
This Analysis quantifies these impacts using an input/output (I/O) economic 
modeling system, which measures the change in regional economic activity 
resulting from a specific economic stimulus. 

In this Analysis, the local economy is defined as Colusa County (County), and the 
economic impacts measured include the direct contributions of the Project, as well 
as indirect and induced impacts resulting from Project construction and 
operations. Figure 1 illustrates the activities captured by this Analysis. 

Figure 1. Economic Impact Analysis Components 

In addition, this Analysis includes an estimate of revenues generated by the 
Project to the public sector of the County. 

1 Total economic output refers to the value of goods and services produced in a county as a 
result of a project’s buildout operations. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 3 

Economic  Impact  Results  

Table 1 summarizes the estimated one-time construction impacts, ongoing 
annual direct, indirect, and induced impacts, and public-sector revenues 
generated by the Project in the County: 

The construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $15.9 million in one-
time economic impacts, supporting 90 jobs. 

On an annual ongoing basis, Project operations are anticipated to generate 
$4.0 million annually in total economic impacts, supporting 6 new jobs in the 
County. 

This Analysis includes an estimate of tax revenues generated in the County. 
The construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $788,000 in one-
time fiscal revenues to the County. On an annual ongoing basis, the Project is 
anticipated to generate tax revenue to support public-sector operations 
ranging from $155,000 in the first year of operations to $22,000 once all 

assets have depreciated (years 12 and beyond).2

One-Time Construction Economic Impact Results 

One-time economic impacts are generated by construction and as such are limited 
to the development period of the construction. To the extent that construction 
activity is short-term and construction labor markets are tight, construction 
impacts may represent a shift of resources from other projects in the County. This 
report, therefore, reports gross economic impacts, not accounting for potential 
shifts in resources. To the extent that construction labor is used temporarily and 
laborers may live outside of the County, this Analysis is based on the assumption 
that construction activities will not generate induced impacts. Construction 
impacts are based on the anticipated construction employment estimates and 
hard construction costs for the proposed Project, as provided by the Applicant. 

2 Ongoing public sector revenues include annual property tax revenues estimated assuming a 
dual use scenario in which the BESS would in any part be fueled by the existing power grid, 
resulting in a reduced solar exclusion of 75% of the property value for the BESS not assessed for 
property tax purposes. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0\
21

21
42

 C
ol

us
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ja
nu

s 
S

o
la

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
od

el
\2

12
14

2
 E

IA
 m

1 
11

.0
3

.2
2

4

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 5 

One-time economic impacts stemming from construction of the Project are 
estimated to generate a total output of $15.9 million (measured in 
2022 dollars). It is anticipated that construction of the Project will generate 
90 job-years over the anticipated construction timeline, including 83 direct and 

7 indirect job years.3

Ongoing Economic Impact Results 

Ongoing economic impacts are measured on a gross annual impact basis, not 
accounting for shifts in consumer expenditures from other local alternatives. 
Based on the anticipated operating expenditure of the Project after stabilized 
operations are reached, approximately $4.0 million in total economic activity 
(measured in 2022 dollars) is estimated to be generated in the County annually. 
This level of economic output represents direct, indirect, and induced impacts. 

The Project is estimated to result in 6 full- and part-time jobs in the County as 
a result of ongoing, annual Project operations, including 3 direct (on-site) Project 
jobs, 2 indirect jobs, and 1 induced job. These full- and part-time jobs are 
estimated to generate approximately $752,000 in earned employee 
compensation (wages and benefits).

Public-Sector Revenues 

This Analysis estimates tax revenues resulting from the Project that will flow to 
the County resulting from Project construction and ongoing operations. This 
Analysis focuses on major sources of tax revenue only, including property tax, 
property tax in lieu of vehicle license fees, property transfer tax, and sales tax 
revenues. Under a dual-use scenario, in which only a portion of the assessed 
BESS is eligible for the State of California’s (State) Active Solar Energy System 
Exclusion (Exclusion), it is estimated that Project operations will generate public-
sector tax revenues ranging from approximately $155,000 in the first year of 
Project operations to $22,000 annually after the Project facilities have 
depreciated in value (years 12 and beyond) with an additional $788,000 in 
one time County revenues related to Project construction (measured in 
2022 dollars). 

3 Note that the employment figures reported for construction impacts represent total job years 
lasting over the duration of the Project and could reflect the same job that extends over multiple 
years. For instance, a general laborer employed for 2 years during construction activity would 
represent 2 job years. Construction employment in any given month of Project development may 
exceed total job year estimates. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 6 

Deta i led  Analys is  F indings  and 
Assumpt ions

The following section provides the detailed results of the Analysis, as well as the 
assumptions used to calculate each impact. 

One-Time Construction Impacts 

Impacts associated with construction of the Project through buildout are 
measured on a one-time basis. Construction activity generates a short-term burst 
of economic activity that dissipates once construction is complete. One-time 
impacts include the value of new construction, improvements to existing 
infrastructure, employment created, and income earned during Project 
construction. The duration of one-time impacts is limited to the development 
period of the Project. One-time economic impacts are calculated based on the 
anticipated Project construction employment estimates provided by the Project 
Applicant. Based on information provided by the Project Applicant, it is estimated 
that construction of the Project will last approximately 9 months with employment 
estimates of up to 175 employees during any given month. As the economic 
impacts are estimated based on annual job years, EPS converted the monthly job 
estimates to an annual job year estimate. The conversion of monthly to annual 
job estimates is shown on Table B-1 in Appendix B.

The section below details the one-time economic impacts results for construction 
of the Project. 

One-Time Project Construction 

Table 2 details the estimated one-time economic impacts associated with 
construction of the Project. The resulting impacts are described below: 

Annual Output: Construction operations are estimated to generate 
approximately $14.5 million in direct one-time industry output. Local spending 
will result in $1.4 million in indirect one-time impacts for a total one-time 
industry output impact of $15.9 million. 

Employee Compensation: Of the $14.5 million in direct industry output 
reported above, approximately $7.1 million will be received by construction 
employees in the form of salary, wages, and benefits. Indirect employee 
compensation impacts total approximately $402,000, for a total annual 
employee compensation impact of approximately $7.5 million. 

Annual Employment: The 83 direct job years support 7 indirect job years for 
a total employment impact of 90 job years. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0
\2

12
14

2 
C

ol
us

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ja

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
o

de
l\2

12
14

2 
E

IA
 m

1
 1

1.
03

.2
2

7

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 8 

Ongoing Operations 

This report estimates the ongoing economic impacts occurring annually as a result 
of the Project operations in the County. Ongoing economic impacts capture the 
direct, indirect, and induced impacts generated by annual operations of the 
Project. Impacts associated with these economic activities are estimated based 
annual ongoing Project operational expenditures, provided by the Project 
Applicant, reflecting stabilized operations. 

Ongoing Project Operations 

Table 3 summarizes the total estimated annual ongoing impacts associated with 
Project operations. The resulting impacts are described below: 

Annual Output: Project operations are estimated to generate approximately 
$3.6 million in direct industry output annually. Local spending will result in 
approximately $318,000 in indirect industry output impacts and $145,000 in 
induced impacts annually for a total industry output impact of $4.0 million on 
an annual basis. 

Employee Compensation: Of the $3.6 million in direct industry output 
reported above, approximately $626,000 will be received by employees 
employed in the Project in the form of salary, wages, and benefits. Indirect 
and induced employee compensation impacts total approximately $126,000 
for a total annual employee compensation impact of approximately $752,000. 

Annual Employment: The 3 direct jobs will generate approximately 
2 indirect and 1 induced jobs annually for a total employment impact of 

approximately 6 jobs on an annual basis.4

Additional Public-Sector Revenues 

The Project will generate additional revenues to the County. This Analysis focuses 
on major sources of tax revenues, including property tax and sales tax revenues, 
as shown in Table 4. Based on the State’s Revenue and Taxation Code 
section 73, active solar facilities are eligible for the State Exclusion program, 
which allows for development of active solar facilities with no increase in assessed 
value for construction of active solar facilities. The property tax revenues 
estimated in this analysis are based on estimating methodologies derived from 
the Guidelines for Active Solar Energy Systems New Construction Exclusion 
(Guidelines), published by the State Board of Equalization in December 2012.  

4 Job estimates reflect total full- and part-time employment, adjusted for seasonality but not 
adjusted for hours worked per day. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0
\2

12
14

2 
C

ol
us

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ja

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
o

de
l\2

12
14

2 
E

IA
 m

1
 1

1.
03

.2
2

9

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
E

P
S

 1
/9

/2
0

23
Z

:\S
ha

re
d\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
S

A
C

\2
12

00
0

\2
12

14
2 

C
ol

us
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ja
nu

s 
S

ol
ar

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
co

no
m

ic
 Im

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
si

s\
M

o
de

l\2
12

14
2 

E
IA

 m
1

 1
1.

03
.2

2
1
0

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 11 

This Analysis estimates public-sector revenues under two scenarios related to the 
State’s Exclusion program: 

No Exclusion Scenario: The No Exclusion Scenario is provided for
informational purposes and estimates the public sector revenues generated by
the project assuming no Exclusion for any portions of the Project.
No depreciation is assumed in the No Exclusion Scenario.

Dual Use Scenario: The Dual Use Scenario reflects a likely operational
scenario for the project in which the BESS will in part be fueled using the
existing energy grid and not exclusively new solar facilities. Based on
information provided in the Guidelines, this scenario assumes that the active
solar facilities within the Project would be eligible for the Exclusion and the
dual-use BESS would be eligible for a partial (75 percent) Exclusion. The Dual
Use Scenario assumes the value of the BESS will depreciate for the first
12 years of Project operations.

Under the no Exclusion Scenario construction of the Project is anticipated to 
generate $788,000 in one-time County revenues and ongoing Project operations 
are anticipated to generate $611,000 in additional public-sector tax revenue. 

Under the Dual Use Scenario, construction of the Project is anticipated to 
generate $788,000 in one-time County revenues and ongoing Project operations 
are anticipated to generate $155,000 in additional public-sector tax revenue in 
the initial year of operations decreasing as the Project depreciates in value to 
$22,000 annual for year 12 and beyond. 

The Analysis estimates additional public-sector revenues using a marginal-
revenue case-study approach, which simulates actual revenue generation 
resulting from new development. The following sections detail the additional 
public-sector tax revenues generated by the Project and the case-study 
methodologies used to calculate each revenue source. 

One-Time Revenues Generated by Project Construction 

Property Transfer Tax 

Real property transfer tax is based on the value of the portion of the Project land 
to be purchased through a fee simple property sale prior to Project development. 
Real property transfer tax revenue projections are identified in Table A-1 in 
Appendix A.

Sales Tax 

Sales tax revenue is based on estimated taxable sales and the Bradley-Burns local 
1-percent Uniform Local Sales Tax rate as summarized in Table A-2 in
Appendix A. Due to local purchasing agreements entered into between the
County and the Project Applicant, it is anticipated that sales tax generated by
Project construction would be registered to a local property in the unincorporated

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 12 

Colusa County. Based on information provided by the Project Applicant, 
construction of the Project is estimated to result in $3.25 million in sales taxes. 
Due to the local purchasing agreement, the Analysis assumes that all sales tax 
related to construction materials and services would be generated in Colusa 
County. The County’s share of sales tax revenue is estimated using the share of 
total sales tax rates benefitting the County, including the Bradley Burns sales tax 
rate, local transportation taxes, and Proposition 172 public safety sales tax. As 
shown on Table A-2, Project construction is estimated to generate $784,000 in 
sales tax revenue to the County. 

In total, construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $788,000 in one-
time County revenues under all scenarios. 

Ongoing Annual Revenues Generated by Project Operations 

Property Tax Revenues 

The Analysis estimates property tax revenues generated by the Project annually 
under each Exclusion scenario. The Project is estimated to create $174.9 million 
in assessed value (net of existing land value) including $174.1 million in BESS 
uses and $1.0 million in other real property, including streets, fencing, and other 
uses not directly related to solar operations. 

No Exclusion Scenario 
The No Exclusion Scenario estimates annual property tax revenues based on the 
total value of real property and the BESS with no Exclusion applied. Under this 
scenario, the Project is estimated to generate $404,000 in property tax revenues 
to the County General Fund, annually. 

Dual Use Scenario 
The Dual Use Scenario assumes that the BESS would be in part fueled using 
energy from the existing power grid and not fully from new solar facilities and 
would be eligible for a partial exclusion, as detailed in the Guidelines. Due to the 
dual-use categorization, the BESS would be eligible for a 75 percent exclusion, 
with property taxes being generated on only 25 percent of the total BESS value. 
The real property would not be eligible for Exclusion. In addition to the partial 
Exclusion, the Dual Use Scenario includes annual depreciation of BESS facility 
values, with the Project being fully depreciated to 13 percent of the beginning 
value by year 12 of Project operations. In the initial year of Project operations, 
the Project is estimated to generate $102,000 in property tax revenue benefitting 
the County General Fund. After the Project fully depreciates in year 12, it is 
estimated that the Project will generate $15,000 in property taxes, annually. 

Estimated annual property tax revenue resulting from development in the Project 
is presented in Table A-3 in Appendix A. The estimated assessed values for 
Project land uses are assumed to remain static in 2022-dollar values—real growth 
in assessed value is not estimated. The property taxes the County will receive are 
derived from the total assessed value of the Project, as provided by the Project 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 13 

Applicant, and the estimated post-Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
(ERAF) share of the 1 percent ad valorem property tax rate to the County. 

Property Tax in Lieu of Vehicle License Fee 

The Analysis uses a formula provided by the State Controller’s Office to forecast 
Property Tax in Lieu of Vehicle License Fees (PTIL VLF). PTIL VLF is calculated by 
taking the percentage increase in the County’s assessed value resulting from the 
Project under each scenario and applying that percentage increase to the County’s 
current State allocation of PTIL VLF revenue, as shown in the County’s Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2021-22 budget. This calculation is shown in Table A-3 in Appendix A.
As shown, the Project is anticipated to generate approximately $207,000 in PTIL 
VLF revenues to the County under the No Exclusion Scenario. Under the Dual Use 
Scenario, the Project is anticipated to generate approximately $52,000 in PTIL 
VLF revenues in the initial year of operations and $8,000 annually beginning in 
year 12. 

Economic  Impact  Model ing F ramework

The Analysis uses an I/O modeling framework to quantify the project’s one-time 
and ongoing contributions to countywide output, employment, and labor income. 
The I/O modeling framework is premised on the concept that industries in a 
geographic region are interdependent in the sense that they purchase output from 
and supply input to other industries. This regional economic analysis relies on 
IMPLAN (Impact Analysis for Planning) software, an I/O model that draws on data 
collected by the IMPLAN Group, LLC, from several state and federal sources, 
including the Bureau of Economic Analysis, the Bureau of Labor Statistics, and the 
Census Bureau. The model is used widely for estimating economic impacts across 
a wide array of industries and economic settings. 

Regional economic impact analysis and I/O models in particular provide a means 
to estimate total regional effects stemming from a particular industry. Specifically, 
I/O models produce quantitative estimates of the magnitude of regional economic 
activity resulting from some initial activity (e.g., business operations or building 
construction). I/O models rely on economic “multipliers” that mathematically 
represent the relation between the initial change in one sector of the economy 
and the effect of that change on economic output, income, or employment in 
other local industries. These economic data provide a quantitative estimate of the 
magnitude of shifts in jobs and revenues in the regional economy. 

Economic impacts using an I/O model are based on an initial change in output or 
employment in a specific industry sector. The model then translates the initial 
change into changes in demand for output from other interdependent sectors, 
corresponding changes in demand for inputs to those sectors, and so on. These 
effects commonly are described as direct, indirect, or induced and generally are 
defined as follows: 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 14 

The direct effect represents the change in output or employment attributable
to a certain economic activity. In this case, the annual operations of the
Project and the entities directly receiving spending related to the building
construction project (e.g., construction contractors, equipment vendors, and
consultants).

The indirect effect results from industry-to-industry transactions required to
satisfy the direct effect. This effect is a measure of the change in the output of
suppliers linked to the industry that is directly affected.

The induced effect consists of impacts from employee spending in the local
economy. Specifically, the employees of directly and indirectly affected
businesses generate this effect by purchasing goods and services in the local
economy. For instance, employees of these businesses spend their paychecks
on household needs such as groceries, retail purchases, health care, or
mortgage or rent payments, all of which are considered to be induced effects.

The total impact is the sum of the direct, indirect, and induced effects. The total 
effect measures the impact of an activity as it “ripples” throughout the regional 
economy. For this Analysis, the regional economy is defined as the County. 
IMPLAN generates a model of the industrial structure and household profile for the 
County economy, which in turn determines the extent to which spending is 
captured and recirculated in the local economy rather than being allowed to leak 
outside the County. In the following sections, the regional economic effects 
described above are reported in three categories: 

Annual Output: Annual output measures the value of goods and services
produced in the County as a result of business operations. Projected Project
operational expenditures were used to estimate ongoing annual output of the
Project. Construction employment was used to estimate one-time construction
impacts.

Employment: Employment estimates the total number of jobs, both full time
and part time, created as a result of project operations. Employment is
reported in job years. Construction employment represents total job-years
over the life of the project (1 job lasting 2 years would be reported as an
employment impact of “2”).

Labor Income: Labor income reflects the estimated amount of direct,
indirect, and induced annual employment income (salaries, wages, and
benefits) resulting from the associated employment. It is important to note
that labor income is a component of industry output and is not an additive
economic impact.

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis 
January 9, 2023 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 15 

I/O Modeling Considerations 

The current IMPLAN dataset relies on I/O relations derived from 2019. Although 
2020 data is available, due to the unique nature of the economy as the COVID-19 
pandemic impacted the global economy, EPS believes the 2019 data provides a 
more accurate and reasonable approximation of conditions on an ongoing basis. 

All economic impacts depicted in this Analysis reflect gross impacts. As such, the 
economic impacts do not account for potential shifts in resources or shifts in 
consumer expenditures from other local alternatives. The I/O methodology is 
based on the assumption that an industry’s demand for goods and services results 
in a corresponding increase in supply and therefore employment. This implies that 
key industry suppliers can increase output rather than shift output from one set of 
consumers or products to another. This assumption may not hold in areas with 
tight labor or capital markets because companies may find it difficult to obtain 
these inputs or other resources necessary to expand production. In these cases, 
accommodating an establishment’s demand for labor and other inputs may come 
at the expense of other establishments in the same or related sectors or may 
need to be satisfied by increased imports from outside the study area. This 
phenomenon often is referred to as “crowding out” because the stimulated sector 
tends to crowd out other sectors, which can reduce the net economic gain. 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



APPENDICES:

Appendix A: Fiscal Revenue-Estimating 
Tables

Appendix B: Project Construction 
Employment Estimates 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



APPENDIX A: 

Fiscal Revenue-Estimating Tables 

Table A-1 One-Time Real Property Transfer Tax ..................... A-1

Table A-2 Estimated One-Time Taxable Sales and  
Use Tax Revenue from Project Construction ............ A-2

Table A-3 Estimated Annual Property Tax Revenues ............... A-3

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0
\2

12
14

2 
C

ol
us

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ja

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
o

de
l\2

12
14

2 
E

IA
 m

1
 1

1.
03

.2
2

A
-1

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



a

b
 =

 a

c 
 b

 
 1

.0
0

/
.2

d 
 b

 
 0

.2
/

.2

e 
 b

 
 0

.
0

/
.2

f 
=

 c
 +

 d
 +

 e

 
 b

 
 

.
0

/
.2

h
 =

 b

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
E

P
S

  1
/9

/2
02

3
Z

:\S
ha

re
d\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
S

A
C

\2
12

00
0

\2
12

1
42

 C
o

lu
sa

 C
ou

n
ty

 J
a

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
n

om
ic

 I
m

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
si

s\
M

od
el

\2
1

21
4

2 
E

IA
 m

1 
11

.0
3.

22
A
-2

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



a b c

d 
 b

 
 c

e 
 a

 
 d

 
 e

 
 

h 
 

 
 1

.0
0

i 
 h

 
 2

3.
13

j 
 h

 
 

.

k 
=

 i l m

n 
 l 

 m

o 
 m

 /
 n

p
 =

 o
 *

 $
3

,4
89

,9
25

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
E

P
S

  1
/9

/2
02

3
Z

:\S
ha

re
d\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
S

A
C

\2
12

00
0

\2
12

1
42

 C
o

lu
sa

 C
ou

n
ty

 J
a

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
n

om
ic

 I
m

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
si

s\
M

od
el

\2
1

21
4

2 
E

IA
 m

1 
11

.0
3.

22
A
-3

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



APPENDIX B:

Project Construction Employment Estimates 

Table B-1 Estimated Project Construction  
Employment Estimates .........................................B-1 

Table B-2 Existing Project Parcel Values ................................B-2 

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0
\2

12
14

2 
C

ol
us

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ja

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
o

de
l\2

12
14

2 
E

IA
 m

1
 1

1.
03

.2
2

B
-1

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
P

S
  1

/9
/2

0
23

Z
:\S

ha
re

d\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

S
A

C
\2

12
00

0
\2

12
14

2 
C

ol
us

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ja

nu
s 

S
ol

ar
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s\

M
o

de
l\2

12
14

2 
E

IA
 m

1
 1

1.
03

.2
2

B
-2

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Gavin Newsom, Governor 
David Shabazian, Director 

 
 
 

State of California Natural Resources Agency | Department of Conservation  
715 P Street, MS 1904, Sacramento, CA 95814 

conservation.ca.gov | T: (916) 324-0850 | F: (916) 327-3430 

MARCH 20, 2023

VIA EMAIL: GPLUCKER@COUNTYOFCOLUSA.COM
Greg Plucker
County of Colusa, Secretary to the Planning Commission
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95932

Dear Mr. Plucker: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING: FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND USE PERMIT 
FOR THE JANUS SOLAR PROJECT, SCH#2020070577

The Department of Conservation’s (Department) Division of Land Resource Protection 
(Division) has reviewed the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar 
Project (Project). The Division monitors farmland conversion on a statewide basis, 
provides technical assistance regarding the Williamson Act, and administers various 
agricultural land conservation programs. We offer the following comments with respect 
to the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar Project.

Project Description

The project would include: (1) approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple solar 
arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system and ancillary infrastructure; (2) a 
battery energy storage system (BESS) consisting of batteries, battery storage system 
enclosures, ancillary infrastructure and fire protection systems; (3) and an on-site 
substation that would connect to the existing Cortina Substation via an approximately 
3-mile-long, 60 kV gen-tie line strung on new poles of up to 80 feet in height. The entirety 
of the Project site is under a Williamson Act contract.

Department Comments

The Department notes that the lead agency adequately addressed the majority of its 
comments in its letter written in response to the projects Draft Environmental Impact 
Report. However, the lead agency did not address, nor comment on, the Department’s 
recommendation for further discussion of the following issues:

• The Project’s compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands
   within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Williamson Act contract.
• If applicable, notification of Williamson Act contract non-renewal and/or

cancellation.

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



Page 2 of 2 
 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the Final Environmental Impact 
Report for the Janus Solar Project. Please provide this Department with notices of any 
future hearing dates as well as any staff reports pertaining to this project. If you have 
any questions regarding our comments, please contact Farl Grundy, Associate 
Environmental Planner via email at Farl.Grundy@conservation.ca.gov.

Sincerely, 

Monique Wilber

Conservation Program Support Supervisor

Sincerely,

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.b

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



03/16/2023 - CCPR # 2023-0176

3.1.b

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

's
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

A
p

ri
l 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 S
ta

ff
 R

e
p

o
rt

  (
9

0
6

6 
: 

J
an

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
se

 P
e

rm
it

 #
2

0-
0

1
 (

P
D

-3
8

29
))

Attachment #9



3.1.c

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
at

w
in

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 P

re
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  
(9

0
66

 :
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

er
m

it
 #

20
-0

1 
(P

D
-3

82
9)

)

Attachment #9



3.1.c

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
at

w
in

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 P

re
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  
(9

0
66

 :
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

er
m

it
 #

20
-0

1 
(P

D
-3

82
9)

)

Attachment #9



3.1.c

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
at

w
in

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 P

re
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  
(9

0
66

 :
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

er
m

it
 #

20
-0

1 
(P

D
-3

82
9)

)

Attachment #9



3.1.c

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
at

w
in

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 P

re
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  
(9

0
66

 :
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

er
m

it
 #

20
-0

1 
(P

D
-3

82
9)

)

Attachment #9



3.1.c

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t:

 P
at

w
in

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 P

re
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  
(9

0
66

 :
 J

a
n

u
s

 S
o

la
r 

U
s

e
 P

er
m

it
 #

20
-0

1 
(P

D
-3

82
9)

)

Attachment #9




